Rebecca de Vries

kPrincipal Planning Officer

Planning and Development Services — SEQ South
Department of State Development,
Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning

L AUPAXAY FIDICY 4

Queensiand (RN
Government Level 1, 7 Short Street, Southport QLD 4215

PO Box 3290, Australia Fair QLD 4215
www.dsdmip.gld.gov.au

From: Thomas Holmes

Sent: Wednesday, 7 February 2018 3:35 PM

To: Kim Kirstein <Kim.Kirstein@dilgp.qld.gov.au>

Cc: Rebecca De Vries <Rebecca.DeVries@dilgp.gld.gov.au>; Daniel Park <Daniel.Park@dilgp.oid.gov.au>
Subject: TLPI No. 5 - attached material.

Council’s lodgement attached.
Everything is being updated/processed now.

However, you should be aware, council have been requested to provide Statements of Reasons under the Judicial
Review Act and council have advised the Minister and Council may ke a party to the judicial review.

Thomas Holmes

enior Planning Officer

Planning and Development Services (SEQ South)
Department of State Development,
Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning

‘.}

y‘L‘_@\
“(\n

L ‘I\-nnu-

Queensland

Government Level 1, 7 Short Street, Southport QLD 4215
PO Box 3290, Australia Fair QLD 4215
www.dsdmip.gld.gov.au
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Daniel Park

From: Daniel Park

Sent: Tuesday, 30 January 2018 4:04 PM

To: Kim Kirstein

Subject: RE: TLPI No. 5 - Notice to pause a timeframe
Attachments: TLPI No. 5 - Notice to pause a timeframe.docx
Hi Kim,

For your review and approval. | have made changes based on the email from Nicole:
Regards,

Daniel Park

enior Planning Officer

#Planning and Development Services (SEQ South)
Department of State Development,
Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning

Queensland P _
Government Level 1, 7 Short Streert, Southport QLD 4215

PO Box 3290, Australia Fair QLD 4215
www.dsdmip.qld.gov.au

From: Daniel Park

Sent: Tuesday, 30 January 2018 3:54 PM

To: Kim Kirstein <Kim.Kirstein@dilgp.qgld.gov.au>; Thomas Holmes <Thomas.Holmes@dilgp.qld.gov.au>
Subject: RE: TLPI No. 5 - Notice to pause @ timeframe

Hi Kim,
Kelli has told us that Nicole is drafting the rictice/email to us now and that it will be with us this afternoon.

The paragraph you have taken issue with is per the template. Having said that | can amend it if you wish to make it
read better.

When are you going affline today?

Regards,

b Daniel Park
=G enior Planning Officer
fﬂ@% Planning and Development Services (SEQ South)
> J
A @ Uire —Department of State Development,
AA%\ Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning
o
Queensiand PN
Government Level 1, 7 Short Streert, Southport QLD 4215

PO Box 3290, Australia Fair QLD 4215
www.dsdmip.qld.gov.au
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From: Kim Kirstein
Sent: Tuesday, 30 January 2018 3:44 PM
To: Thomas Holmes <Thomas.Holmes@dilgp.gld.gov.au>; Daniel Park <Daniel.Park@dilgp.qld.gov.au>

Subject: TLPI No. 5 - Notice to pause a timeframe

Comments per attached.
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Queensland
Government

Departinent of

State Deveiopment,
Manufacturing,
inivastructure and Planning

Our reference: MC18/175
Your reference: PD113/1303(P1)

30 January 2018

Mr Dale Dickson

Chief Executive Officer
Gold Coast City Council
PO Box 5042

GCMC QLD 9729

Dear Mr Dickson

Notice to pause a timeframe
(Given under and chapter 3, part 3, section 101 of the Minister's Guidelines and Rules)

Thank you for submitting the propcosed iemporary Local Planning Instrument No.5
(Minimum Land Above Designated Flood ! evel and Residential Risk Reduction) 2017
(the proposed TLPI) to the (Hoiicurable Cameron Dick MP, Minister for State
Development, Manufacturing, Infrastiucture and Planning on 4 January 2018 for
consideration under chapter 3 of the Minister's Guidelines and Rules 2017 (MGR).

On 15 January 2018 ‘the /'Department of State Development, Manufacturing,
Infrastructure and Planning {the’/department) sent the Gold Coast City Council (the
council) a notice requesting additional information on the proposed TLPI and pausing
the assessment timeframe under the MGR until 30 January 2018.

On 30 January 2018, the department received an email from the council requesting
that the curreni pause peiiod be extended until 16 February 2018. The department has
considered this reguest and agrees to extend the duration of the pause period.

Under chapter 3, part 3, section 10.1 of the of the MGR, notice is hereby given that the
timeframe icr the proposed TLPI has been paused. Under chapter 3, part 3, section
10.5 of the MGR, the pause that commenced on 16 January 2018 is extended. Under
chapter 3, part 3, section 10.2 of the MGR, the timeframe is paused until 16 February
2018. Tha MGR process will resume at chapter 3, part 3, section 8.3 of the MGR on
17 February 2018.

Page 1 Planning and Development Services (SEQ South)
PO Box 3290
Australia Fair QLD 4215
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If you require further information, | encourage you to contact Daniel Park, Seniar
Planning Officer, of the department onﬂor by email at bestplanning-
SEQS@dilgp.qld.gov.au.

Yours sincerel

Kim Kirstein
Manager, Planning and Development Services (SEQ South)

Department of State Development, Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning Page 2
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Daniel Park

————
From: Daniel Park
Sent: Tuesday, 30 January 2018 5:05 PM
To: Kim Kirstein; Thomas Holmes
Subject: RE: TLPI No. 5 - Notice to pause a timeframe
Attachments: TLPI No. 5 - Notice to pause a timeframe.pdf
Hi Kim,

Email to Kelli is below. Are you happy for me to send out with approved notice?

Hi Kelli

| refer to the Gold Coast City Council’s (the council) email of 30 January 2018 to the Depaitment of State
Development, Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning (the department) requesting an extension of the pause
period for the proposed Temporary Local Planning Instrument No. 5 (Miriitnum Laind Above Designated Flood Level
and Residential Risk Reduction) 2017 (the proposed TLPI).

Please find attached a notice confirming that the department has agreed to pause the timeframe until 16 February
2018 under chapter 3, part 3, section 10.1 of the Minister's Guidelines arnd Rules. The department's assessment of

the proposed TLPI will resume on 19 February 2018.

If you require further information, | encourage you to contact Daniel Park in the department on_or by
email at Daniel.Park@dilgp.ald.gov.au.

Regards,

Daniel Park
{LA: s enior Planning Officer
’ % Planning and Developmenit5ervices (SEQ South)

é{\y (AR Department of State Deveicpmient,
{ ‘)&@f Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning

JUBAC AT TIDES ] —,

\ N,
g

Queensland
Government Level 1, 7 Short Streert, Sauthport’'GLD 4215

PO Box 3290, Australia Fair QtD4215
www.dsdmip.gld.gov.au

From: Kim Kirstein

Sent: Tuesday, 3C January 2018 4:53 PM

To: ThomasHolmes <Thomas.Holmes@dilgp.qld.gov.au>; Daniel Park <Daniel.Park@dilgp.qgld.gov.au>
Subject: FW: TLPI No. 5 - Notice to pause a timeframe

Gowith the friendlier version please per attached. Just add in the one little hook to the relevant section for probity
whare the yeliow highlight is.

Approved per change for progression.

Thanks
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q Kim Kirstein

S~ sManager

Planning and Development Services (SEQ South)
Department of State Development,

o g Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning

Giooroand I
Government Level 1, 7 Short Street, Southport QLD 4215

PO Box 3290, Australia Fair QLD 4215
www.dsdmip.gld.gov.au

From: Daniel Park

Sent: Tuesday, 30 January 2018 4:37 PM

To: Kim Kirstein <Kim.Kirstein@dilgp.qld.gov.au>
Subject: RE: TLPI No. 5 - Notice to pause a timeframe

Hi Kim,
Friendlier version attached.
Let me know which one you want sent out.

Regards,

Daniel Park

o, enior Planning Officer

Z/ } Planning and Development Services (SEQ Soth)
GIARANS Department of State Development,
Qg . |
«‘)“\ " Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning

Government Levell, ort Streert, Southport-QLD 4215

PO Box 3290, Australia Fair QLD'4215
www.dsdmip.gld.gov.au

From: Kim Kirstein
Sent: Tuesday, 30 January-2018 4:33' PM

To: Daniel Park <Daniel.Parik@dilgp:qld.gov.au>; Thomas Holmes <Thomas.Holmes@dilgp.qld.gov.au>

Subject: TLPI No. 5 -Notice to pause a timeframe

Approved as attached.

| still don't lika that last-para but run with it if it is templated.

Also, don't forget to keep dates to one line and not break across 2 lines.

Thanks
Kim
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Queensland
Government

Departmient of

State Develocpment,
Manufacturing,
Infiastructiie and Planning

Our reference: MC18/175
Your reference: PD113/1303(P1)

30 January 2018

Mr Dale Dickson

Chief Executive Officer
Gold Coast City Council
PO Box 5042

GCMC QLD 9729

Dear Mr Dickson

Notice to pause a timeframe
(Given under and chapter 3, part 3, section 10,1 and pursuant fo chapter 3, part 2, section 8.3 and chapter
3, part 3, section 10.2 of the Minister's Guidelines ard Rules)

Thank you for submitting the proposed Ternporary Local Planning Instrument No.5
(Minimum Land Above Designaied Flood i_evel and Residential Risk Reduction) 2017
(the proposed TLPI) to the Henourable Cameron Dick MP, Minister for State
Development, Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning on 4 January 2018 for
consideration under chapter 3 of the Minister's Guidelines and Rules 2017 (MGR).

On 15 January 2018, the’ Department of State Development, Manufacturing,
Infrastructure and Planning (the/department) sent the Gold Coast City Council (the
council) a notice requesting additional information on the proposed TLPI and pausing
the assessment timeframe urider the MGR until 30 January 2018.

On 30 January 2018, the department received an email from the council requesting
that the current pause périod be extended until 16 February 2018. The department has
considered this request and agrees to extend the duration of the pause period.

This notice/ therefore pauses the timeframe for the proposed TLPI until
16 February 2018 under chapter 3, part 3, section 10.1 of the MGR. The department’s
assessment of the proposed TLPI will resume on 19 February 2018.

Page 1 Planning and Development Services (SEQ South)
PO Box 3290
Australia Fair QLD 4215
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If you require further information, | encourage you to contact Daniel Park, Seriior
Planning Officer, of the department onﬂor by email at bestplanning-

SEQS@dilgp.qld.gov.au.

Yours sincerely

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

Sent: Tuesday, 30 January 2018 4:42 PM

To: Kim Kirstein

Subject: RE: TLPI No. 5 - Notice to pause a timeframe

No, MGR only allows for pauses not extensions. The effect is that if a pause is given before’a current pause has
ended the period is extended.

Daniel Park

enior Planning Officer

Planning and Development Services (SEQ South)
Department of State Development,
Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning

P 07 5644 3214

Government Level 1,7 Short Streert, Southport QLD 4215
PO Box 3290, Australia Fair QLD 4215
www.dsdmip.gld.gov.au

From: Kim Kirstein

Sent: Tuesday, 30 January 2018 4:40 PM

To: Thomas Holmes <Thomas.Holmes@dilgp.qid.gov.au>; Baniel Park <Daniel.Park@dilgp.qld.gov.au>
Subject: FW: TLPI No. 5 - Notice to pause a timefran:e

So are we extending or repausing? Perhaps we need the first version which has the complicated links....surely it can’t
be that complicated?? Should there just e a provision allowing it to b e extended??

Kim Kirstein

" MaManager

¥Planning and Davelopmient Sefvices (SEQ South)
DA R Department of State Development,

‘b)j\,, Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning

Government Level 1,7/ Short Street, Southport QLD 4215
PO Box 3290, Australia Fair QLD 4215
www.dsdmig.gld.gov.au

From: Danie! Park

Sent: Tuzsday, 30 January 2018 4:37 PM

To: Kim Kirstein <Kim.Kirstein@dilgp.qgld.gov.au>
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

Queensland P

Government Level 1, 7 Short Streert, Southport QLD 4215
PO Box 3290, Australia Fair QLD 4215
www.dsdmip.qld.gov.au

From: Kim Kirstein
Sent: Tuesday, 30 January 2018 4:33 PM

To: Daniel Park <Daniel.Park@dilgp.qld.gov.au>; Thomas Holmes <Thomas.Hoimes@dilgp.qld.gov.au>
Subject: TLPI No. 5 - Notice to pause a timeframe

Approved as attached.
| still don't like that last para but run with it if it is templated:
Also, don't forget to keep dates to one line and not break across 2 lines.

Thanks
Kim
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Eﬁel Park

From: Daniel Park

Sent: Tuesday, 30 January 2018 4:20 PM

To: Kim Kirstein

Subject: RE: TLPI No. 5 - Notice to pause a timeframe
Attachments: TLPI No. 5 - Notice to pause a timeframe.docx
Hi Kim,

Minor amendment to the date our timeframes restarts as 17 February is a Saturday:

Daniel Park

enior Planning Officer

*Planning and Development Services (SEQ South)
Department of State Development,
Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning

i)
Queensiand ISR
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
Subject: RE: TLPI No. 5 - Notice to pause a timeframa

Hi Kim,
For your review and approval. | have made chariges based on the email from Nicole.

Regards,

Daniel Park
enior Planning Officer
Planning and Developraent Services (SEQ South)
Department of State Development,
‘ Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning

Government Levell, ort Streert, Southport QLD 4215

PO Box 3290, Australia Fair QLD 4215
www.dsdmip.gld.gov.au

From: Danizl Park
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
Kelli has told us that Nicole is drafting the notice/email to us now and that it will be with us this afterncar.

The paragraph you have taken issue with is per the template. Having said that | can amend it if you wish to-make it
read better.

When are you going offline today?

Regards,

Daniel Park
;', enior Planning Officer
Planning and Development Services (SEQ South)
Department of State Development,
Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning

LAl l Il.ll nu-

Queensland
Government Level 1, 7 Short Streert, Southport QLD 4215

PO Box 3290, Australia Fair QLD 4215
www.dsdmip.gld.gov.au

From: Kim Kirstein

Sent: Tuesday, 30 January 2018 3:44 PM

To: Thomas Holmes <Thomas.Holmes@dilgp.qld.gov.au>; Daniel Park <Daniel.Park@dilgp.qld.gov.au>
Subject: TLPI No. 5 - Notice to pause a timgframe

Comments per attached.
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Queensland
Government

Departrient of

State Developmert,
Manufacturing;
Infrastyucture and Planning

Our reference: MC18/175
Your reference: PD113/1303(P1)

30 January 2018

Mr Dale Dickson

Chief Executive Officer
Gold Coast City Council
PO Box 5042

GCMC QLD 9729

Dear Mr Dickson

Notice to pause a timeframe
(Given under and chapter 3, part 3, section 10.%1 of the Minisler's Guidelines and Rules)

Thank you for submitting the propcsea Temporary Local Planning Instrument No.5
(Minimum Land Above Designated Flood Level and Residential Risk Reduction) 2017
(the proposed TLPI) to the jicnourabie Cameron Dick MP, Minister for State
Development, Manufacturing, infrastructure and Planning on 4 January 2018 for
consideration under chapter 3 of the’Minister's Guidelines and Rules 2017 (MGR).

On 15 January 2018/ ‘the/ Depsitment of State Development, Manufacturing,
Infrastructure and Planning’ {the department) sent the Gold Coast City Council (the
council) a notice requesting additional information on the proposed TLPI and pausing
the assessment timeframe under the MGR until 30 January 2018.

On 30 January 2018, the department received an email from the council requesting
that the current pause period be extended until 16 February 2018. The department has
considered this request’and agrees to extend the duration of the pause period.

Under chapter 3, pait 3, section 10.1 of the of the MGR, notice is hereby given that the
timeframie foi' the proposed TLPI has been paused. Under chapter 3, part 3, section
10.5 of the MGR, the pause that commenced on 16 January 2018 is extended. Under
chapter 3, part 3, section 10.2 of the MGR, the timeframe is paused until 16 February
2018. The MGR process will resume at chapter 3, part 3, section 8.3 of the MGR on
19 February 2018.

Page 1 Planning and Development Services (SEQ South)
PO Box 3290
Australia Fair QLD 4215
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If you require further information, | en contact Daniel Park, Senior
Planning Officer, of the department on or by email at bestplanning-

SEQS@dilgp.qgld.gov.au.

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

Sent: Monday, 8 January 2018 9:30 AM

To: Teresa Luck

Cc: Daniel Park

Subject: RE: TLPI No 5 (Minimum land above designated flood level and residential risk reduction)
MC18/175

Hi Teresa,

Yes, the Minister's decision date is Friday 2 February 2018.
| was counting Day 0 as the 4™ January.

Regards,

Thomas Holmes

enior Planning Officer

Planning and Development Services (SEQ South)
Department of State Development,
Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning

L UBC AT TIOE0E

Queensland P 0756443217
Government Level 1, 7 Short Street, Southport QLD 4215

PO Box 3290, Australia Fair QLD 4215
www.dsdmip.qgld.gov.au

From: Teresa Luck

Sent: Monday, 8 January 2018 9:23 AM

To: Thomas Holmes <Thomas.Holmes@dilgp.qid.goviau>

Subject: FW: TLPI No 5 (Minimum land abcve designated flood level and residential risk reduction) MC18/175

Hi Thomas
Based on the below, is the minister’s decision date — Friday 2 February?
Can you confirm please.

Cheers
Teresa

Teresa Luck
b Director
Office of the Deputy-Director General — Planning Group
Department of State Development,
Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning

AL
Qu<enslaiid
Goverrirnent Level 13, 1 William Street, Brisbane QLD 4000
PO Box 15009, City East QLD 4002
www.dsdmip.gld.gov.au
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From: Planning Group Correspondence

Sent: Monday, 8 January 2018 9:20 AM

To: Teresa Luck <Teresa.Luck@dilgp.qld.gov.au>

Subject: FW: TLPI No 5 (Minimum land above designated flood level and residential risk reduction) MC18/175

From: Thomas Holmes

Sent: Friday, 5 January 2018 11:27 AM

To: Planning Group Correspondence <PlanningGroupCorrespondence@dsdip.gld.gov.au>
Subject: RE: TLPI No 5 (Minimum land above designated flood level and residential risk reducticon)

Hi Meaghan,
Yes, statutory dates are:
e Minister's decision - 20 b.d from lodgement

Internal dates include:
e With Min's office — 15 b.d from lodgement
DG -2b.d
DDG - 0.5 b.d
ED-0.5b.d
RD-0.5b.d
Manager — +1 b.d
Officer — finalised 10 b.d from lodgement

Thanks again,

Thomas Holmes

enior Planning Officer

Planning and Development Services (SEQ South)
Department of State Develchment,
Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning

Queensland P
Government Level 1, 7 Short Street, Southport QLD 4215

PO Box 3290, Austiaiia Fair QLD 4215
www.dsdmip.gld.zov.au

From: Planning Group/Correspondence

Sent: Friday, 5 January 2018 11:12 AM

To: Thomas Holmes <Thiarinas.Holmes@dilgp.qld.gov.au>

Subject: RE: TLP! No 5 (Miniivium land above designated flood level and residential risk reduction)

Hi Thomas

| forgot to“ask if there are any statutory timeframes for this one. Could you let me know if there's a date that the Min
needs to make a decision by?

Thanks

Meaghan
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Meaghan Dwyer

P Correspondence Coordinator

(7 My Office of the Deputy Director-General

/ #Planning Group

Department of State Development,
Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning

- ‘l '\-llllll-

Queensland P 0734526774
Government E meaghan.dwyer@dilgp.qld.gov.au

Level 13, 1 William Street, Brisbane QLD 4000
PO Box 15009, City East QLD 4002
www.dsdmip.gld.gov.au

From: Thomas Holmes

Sent: Friday, 5 January 2018 11:09 AM

To: Meaghan Dwyer <Meaghan.Dwyer@dilgp.gld.gov.au>; Planning Group Correspondence
<PlanningGroupCorrespondence@dsdip.qld.gov.au>

Cc: Isaac Harslett <Isaac.Harslett@dilgp.qld.gov.au>; Adam Norris <Adam.Noiris@dilgp.qld.gov.au>; Daniel Park
<Daniel.Park@dilgp.qld.gov.au>

Subject: FW: TLPI No 5 (Minimum land above designated flood level arid residential risk reduction)

Importance: High

Hi Meaghan,

FYI - As discussed, this was the email noting a formatl lacigement was received from the council yesterday regarding
TLPI No. 5.

| understand this is also with the minister’s office.

Regards,

Thomas Holmes

BaSenior Planning Officer

#Planning and Deveicoment Services (SEQ South)
Department of State Developrnent,
Manufacturing, !nfrastructure and Planning

- l '\ln nu-

Queensland P 075644 3217
Government Level 1, 7 Short Streét, Sodathport QLD 4215
PO Box 3299, Austraiia Fair QLD 4215
www.dsdmip.gld.gov.au

From: PARKERKellie [mailto:KPARKER@goldcoast.qld.gov.au]

Sent: Thursdzay, 4 Janiuary 2018 4:20 PM

To: Thomas Holmes <Thomas.Holmes@dilgp.qld.gov.au>

Cc: ADAIR Kelli<KADAIR@goldcoast.qld.gov.au>; COUSINS Martine <MCOUSINS@goldcoast.qld.gov.au>;
MIRFENDERESK Haimid <HMIRFENDERESK@goldcoast.gld.gov.au>; TZANNES Amanda
<ATZANNES@goldcoast.qld.gov.au>; Kim Kirstein <Kim.Kirstein@dilgp.gld.gov.au>

Sukiect: TLPI No 5 (Minimum land above designated flood level and residential risk reduction)
Importance: High

Hi Thomas
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| have been able to track down the TLPI letter (scanned copy which has a white mark over part of the CEO’s
signature, so | have also attached in the same document our internal pink copy of the letter out). | believe this would
have been mailed out on the 22" December (which is the date the CEO’s signed letter appears to have been
scanned into our system).

| have also attached:
e The TLPI;
e The explanatory statement; and
e The City Planning Committee report of 5 December 2017 (this report is in part confidential, a redacted version
will be made available on Council's website).

| have also provided below the official resolution numbers for the Committee and Council meetings:

748th Couneil Meeting 8 December 2017 REPQORT
City Planning Committee Meeting 5 December 2017 37
ITEM 9 CITY PLANNING
FLOOD FREE LAND TLPI

PD113/1303(P1) REPORT CONFIDENTIAL

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION CP17.1205.009
moved Cr PJ Young seconded Cr O'Neill

1 That the report/attachment be deemed non-confidential except for thoss parts
deemed by the Chief Executive Officer to remain confidential in accordance with
sections 171 (3) and 200 (5) of the Local Government Act 2009.

2 Toprepare a Teimporary Local Planning Instrument to implement minimuzn flaod
free land,

3 Toendorse the proposed Temporary Local Planning Instrumzrit No.S (Flood Free
Land and Risk Reduction) 2017, in the form of Attachment 4.

4 That the commencement date of Temporary Local Planning Iristrament No.5 (Flood
Free Land and Risk Reduction) 2017 be 8 December 2017,

5 That Council writes to the Minister to request approva! of thie Temporary Local
Planning Instrument No.5 (Flood Free Land and Residentizf Rish Reduction) 2017
and consideration of 8 December 2017 commencement date,

8 That Council provide the Temporary Local Plenning instrument No.5 (Flocod Free
Land and Residential Risk Reduction) 2017 and relevani supporting material in the
form of Attachment B in accordance with Schedule 3 of the Minister’'s Guidelines
and Rules.

7 Further to the Minister's response, a repart will be brought back to Council sesking
adoption of the Temporary Local Planiaing Instrurment No.5 (Flood Free Land and
Residentlal Risk Reduction) 2017,

CARRIED

Which was then endorsed at the Council meeting of 8 December 2017.

ADOPTION OF THE CITY fLANNING COMMITTEE REPORT

RESOLUTION G17.1208,015 moved Cr Caldwell seconded Cr Gates
That the Repart of the City Flanning Committee's Recommendations of Tuesday,

5 December 2047, numbered CP17,1205.001 to CP17.1205,009, ba adapted with the

axcaplion of Racommendation Numbers CP17.1205.003 and CP17.1205.005 which were
spacifically rzsolved,

CARRIED UNANIMQUSLY

Please let/me know if you require any further information.

Kind regards
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Kellie Parker
A/Supervising Planner
City and Regional Planning
City Planning

City of Gold Coast

e
PO Box 5042 Gold Coast Mail Centre Qld 9729
cityofgoldcoast.com.au

GTY OF

GnLn ' o

i

Council of the City of Gold Coast - confidential communication This email and any files transmitted with it are
confidential and are intended solely for the use of the addressee. If you are not the intended recipient be advised
that you have received this email in error and that any use, dissemination, forwarding, printing or copying of this
email and any file attachments is strictly prohibited. If you have received this email in error, please immediately
notify us. You must destroy the original transmission-and its contents. Before opening or using attachments, check
them for viruses and defects. The contents of this email and its attachments may become scrambled, truncated or
altered in transmission. Please notify us of any anomalies. Our/liability is limited to resupplying the email and
attached files or the cost of having them resupplied.
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Daniel Park

From: Thomas Holmes

Sent: Wednesday, 14 February 2018 2:21 PM
To: Kim Kirstein; Daniel Park

Cc: Rebecca De Vries

Subject: RE: TLPI No.5 briefing package

Can we chat first thing tomorrow morning? Given our timeframes to get it up.

Thomas Holmes
guSenior Planning Officer
Planning and Development Services (SEQ South)
Department of State Development,
- v ‘m“ & Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning

Queensland i

Government Level 1, 7 Short Street, Southport QLD 4215
PO Box 3290, Australia Fair QLD 4215
www.dsdmip.gld.gov.au

From: Kim Kirstein

Sent: Wednesday, 14 February 2018 11:10 AM

To: Thomas Holmes <Thomas.Holmes@dilgp.qgld.gov.au>; Daniel Park’<Daniel.Park@dsdmip.qgld.gov.au>
Cc: Rebecca De Vries <Rebecca.DeVries@dsdmip.qld.gov.au>

Subject: Re: TLPI No.5 briefing package

Hi

We need to have a chat to confirm our position and’I'need an understanding of the issues we have with the
justification first please.

Briefing package can still be pulled togethet in terms of AR background etc and also our assessment.
Use structure of AR we used for the other Talzpzi brief you did Thomas.

Thanks
Kim

Kim Kirstein

Manager - Planning arid Develepment Services (SEQ South) (Mon, Tues, Thurs, Fri)
Department of Infrastructire, Local Government and Planning

Level 1, 7 Short Street Southport QLD 4215

p._l m_ e. kim.kirstein@dilgp.qld.gov

From: Thomas Holmes

Sent: Wednesday, February 14, 2018 9:15:17 AM
To: Kim Kirstein; Daniel Park

Cc:'Rebecca De Vries

Subject: RE: TLPI No.5 briefing package

Hi Kim,
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As you know, we are recommending refusal for the TLPI.

Before we get into the final details, are we confident this is the direction we are heading?

Thomas Holmes

#gSenior Planning Officer

Planning and Development Services (SEQ South)
Department of State Development,

e Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning
Quosnsland

GoweInment | cyel 1, 7 Short Street, Southport QLD 4215

PO Box 3290, Australia Fair QLD 4215
www.dsdmip.qgld.gov.au

From: Kim Kirstein

Sent: Tuesday, 13 February 2018 9:18 AM

To: Thomas Holmes <Thomas.Holmes@dilgp.gld.gov.au>; Daniel Park <Daniei.RPark@dilgp.qld.gov.au>
Cc: Rebecca De Vries <Rebecca.DeVries@dilgp.gld.gov.au>

Subject: TLPI No.5 briefing package

Hi,

Can | please have the council’s justification/ response printed far my ireview. We also need to prioritise this work
please so that the draft briefing package is ready to gc by the end of the week and with me for review.

Thanks
Kim

Kim Kirstein

iFa\anager

Planning and Developmeént Services (5£Q South)
Department of State Development,
Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning

1 G e
Emit S —
Govemment | oye , 7 Short Street, Southport QLD 4215

PO Box 3290, Australia Fair QLD4215
www.dsdmip.gld.gov.au
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Daniel Park

From: Isaac Harslett

Sent: Tuesday, 9 January 2018 3:19 PM

To: Nathan Rule

Cc: Daniel Park; Thomas Holmes; Luke Lankowski; Kim Kirstein

Subject: Temporary Local Planning Instrument No.5

Attachments: Notice of request for further information and to pause a timeframe - TLPIl.docx
Hi Nathan

As discussed please find attached the request for information and pause notice for the Gaid Coast TLPI No.5 (Flood).
It would be greatly appreciated if you could please review prior to the SEQ South 'Office sending the notice to council.
The HIB is currently being updated to reflect this notice.

Cheers

Isaac Harslett
A/Manager

ab
(oA

AN

L~ o7

) ,‘%ﬂ’d’g )f Planning and Development Services (SEQ South)
L ‘{grg\) ) Department of State Development,

(DR

Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning
{ ZUDAE AT VIDILE ]

Queensiand (IR
Government Level 1,7 Short Street, Southport QLD 4215

PO Box 3290, Australia Fair QLD 4215
www.dsdmip.gld.gov.au
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Queensland
Government

Departrient of

State Deveicoment,
Manufacturing,
Inivastricture and Planning

Our reference: MC18/175/ TLPI-00046
Your reference: PD113/1303(P1)

9 January 2018

Mr Dale Dickson

Chief Executive Officer
Gold Coast City Council
PO Box 5042

GCMC QLD 9729

Dear Mr Dickson,

Notice of request for further information-and to’‘pause a timeframe
(Given under chapter 3, part 2, section 8.2 and chapter 3, part'3, section 10.1 of the Minister’s Guidelines
and Rules)

Thank you for submitting the proposed Temporary Local Planning Instrument No.5
(Minimum Land Above Designatad Flood Level and Residential Risk Reduction) 2017
(the proposed TLPI) to the Hcenouiable Cameron Dick MP, Minister for State
Development, Manufacturirig, Infrastructure and Planning on 4 January 2018 for
consideration under chapter 3 of the Minister's Guidelines and Rules 2017 (MGR).

The Department of State Development, Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning
(the department) has carried cut a review of the proposed TLPI and determined that
additional information.is heeded.

Under chapter'3, part 2, section 8.2 of the MGR, | hereby give notice requesting the
following information:

1. Complizance \with section 23(1)(a) and (b) of the Planning Act 2016

The mateiial submitted with the proposed TLPI has not adequately demonstrated
compliance with section 23(1)(a) and (b) of the Planning Act 2016 (the Planning
A(.}t).

The explanatory statement submitted with the proposed TLPI states that the
proposed TLPI is required due to:
e an increase in the extent of the development footprint across the floodplain
beyond the natural yield of the land required for flood protection; and
e negative impacts on residents’ sense of safety and expectations relating to
development in a floodplain.

Page 1 Planning and Development Services (SEQ South)
PO Box 3290
Australia Fair, QLD 4215
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The explanatory statement does not demonstrate serious and immediate risks that
require a temporary local planning instrument to the Gold Coast City Plan 2015.

Please provide supporting information demonstrating:

e That the proposed TLPI is responding to a risk of serious adverse‘cuitural,
economic, environmental or social conditions happening in the iacal
government area. :

e That the delay involved in using the process in sections 18 and 22 ¢f the
Planning Act to make or amend another local planning insirument would
increase the risk.

To assist in providing the required supporting information, it-is recommended that
you provide:

e A fit-for-purpose risk assessment in accordance with state interest policy 2
of the State Planning Policy July 2017, Natural Hazaids, Risk and
Resilience which demonstrates that the current requirements of the Gold
Coast City Plan 2015 do not achieve an acceptable or tolerable level of risk
to people and property and that the proposed TVPI| will achieve an
acceptable or tolerable level of risk to people and property.

e A hydraulic report or similar that identifies why the construction
methodologies commonly used in addressing the existing requirements of
the planning scheme, including pier or pole construction, are not sufficient
to address flood hazards.

e The number of properties affected by the proposed TLPI.

e Supporting maps showing the properties, their defined flood level and
contours, and their zoning (nder the Gold Coast City Plan 2015 that are:

o identified to be affected by the proposed TLPI
o exposed to a flood inundation depth exceeding 0.6 metres and flood
water velocity exceeding 0.8 metres per second.

Under chapter 3, part 3, section 101 of the MGR, notice is hereby given that the
timeframe for the proposed /TLRI has been paused. Under chapter 3, part 3, section
10.2 of the MGR, the timefiameis patsed until 23 January 2018. On 24 January 2018,
the process will resume at section’8.3, chapter 3, part 3 of the MGR.

If you require further information, | encourage you to contact Daniel Park, Senior
Planning Officer;, Planning’ /and Development Services, of the department on

_or by emaii-at’bestplanning-SEQS@dilgp.qld.gov.au.

Yours sincerely

&

Isa:;‘c Harslett
Ai/Manager, Planning and Development Services (SEQ South)
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E‘iel Park

From: Daniel Park

Sent: Friday, 12 January 2018 9:06 AM
To: Thomas Holmes

Subject: TLIP No.5 Standard response
Attachments: TLPI No.5 - standard response.docx

Let me know what you think.

Regards,

Daniel Park
ySenior Planning Officer
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
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Pages 318 through 320 redacted for the following reasons:

Sch. 4(4)(4) - Disclosing deliberative processes



Daniel Park

From: Daniel Park

Sent: Monday, 15 January 2018 4:54 PM

To: Adam Norris

Cc: Thomas Holmes

Subject: TLPI information request and stop the clock notice

Attachments: 20180108 - Notice of request for further information and to pause a timefrarne = TLPI (2).docx
Hi Adam,

Please find the attached for your approval. | have made changes in accordance with the markup provided by
Graeme.

Regards,

Daniel Park

enior Planning Officer

#Planning and Development Services (SEQ South)
Department of State Development,
Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning

L ZUBC XY TIDITE 7

Queensland P 075644 3214

Government Level 1, 7 Short Streert, Southport QLD 4215
PO Box 3290, Australia Fair QLD 4215
www.dsdmip.gld.gov.au
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Queensland
Government

Department of

State Devetopment,
Manufacturing,
Infrastructure and Planning

Our reference: MC18/175
Your reference: PD113/1303(P1)

15 January 2018

Mr Dale Dickson

Chief Executive Officer
Gold Coast City Council
PO Box 5042

GCMC QLD 9729

Dear Mr Dickson,

Notice of request for further information aric to pause a timeframe
(Given under chapter 3, part 2, section 8.2 and chapter 3, part 3, section 10.1 of the Minister's Guidelines
and Rules)

Thank you for submitting the proposed Temporary Local Planning Instrument No.5
(Minimum Land Above Designated Flood Level and Residential Risk Reduction) 2017
(the proposed TLPI) to the Honourable Cameron Dick MP, Minister for State
Development, Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning on 4 January 2018 for
consideration under chapter'3 of the Minister's Guidelines and Rules 2017 (MGR).

The Department of State Developiment, Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning
(the department) has carried cut-a review of the proposed TLPI and determined that
additional information.is needed.

The material submitted with the proposed TLPI has not adequately demonstrated
compliance with section 23(1)(A) and (b) of the Planning Act 2016 (the Planning Act).

The explanatery statement submitted with the proposed TLPI states that the proposed
TLPI is required due to:
e - _an’‘increase in the extent of the development footprint across the floodplain
beyend the natural yield of the land required for flood protection; and
e negative impacts on residents’ sense of safety and expectations relating to
development in a floodplain.

Under chapter 3, part 2, section 8.2 of the MGR, | hereby give notice requesting the
followirg information:

1.~Compliance with section 23(1)(a) and (b) of the Planning Act

Page 1 Planning and Development Services (SEQ South)
PO Box 3290
Australia Fair, QLD 4215
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The explanatory statement does not demonstrate the serious and immediate risks that
justifies the use of a temporary local planning instrument to the Gold Coast City Plan
20185.

Please provide information that demonstrates:

e the proposed TLPI is responding to a risk of serious adverse cuitural,
economic, environmental or social conditions happening in-the  locai
government area.

e the delay involved in using the process in sections 18 and 22 of the Planning
Act to make or amend another local planning instrument would increase the
risk.

To assist in the assessment of the temporary local planning instrument please provide:
e a statement on why the current mitigation measures within the Gold Coast
City Plan 2015 are insufficient to address the future cumuiative impacts of

flood hazards; and
e legible maps showing the number of properties affected by the proposed TLPI

Under chapter 3, part 3, section 10.1 of the MGR, notice is’hereby given that the
timeframe for the proposed TLPI has been paused. Under chapter 3, part 3, section

10.2 of the MGR, the timeframe is paused until 30 Jariuary 2018. The MGR process
will resume at section 8.3, chapter 3, part 3 of the MGR on 31 January 2018.

If you require further information, | encourage vou to contact Daniel Park, Senior
Planning Officer, of the department on “or by email at bestplanning-
SEQS@dilgp.qld.gov.au.

Y
/ / />
Adam Norris

A/Manager, Planninig and Davelopment Services (SEQ South)

Yours sincerely
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Daniel Park

From: Kim Kirstein

Sent: Tuesday, 30 January 2018 3:44 PM

To: Thomas Holmes; Daniel Park

Subject: TLPI No. 5 - Notice to pause a timeframe
Attachments: TLPI No. 5 - Notice to pause a timeframe.docx

Comments per attached.

RTIP1718-047 - Part 3 Page Number 324



Queensland
Government

Department of

State Development,

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
(Given under and chapter 3, part 3, section 10.1 of the Minister’s Guidelines and Ruies)

Thank you for submitting the proposed Temporary l.acal Planning Instrument No.5
(Minimum Land Above Designated Flood Level and Residential Risk Reduction) 2017
(the proposed TLPI) to the Honourable Cameron Dick -MP,” Minister for State
Development, Manufacturing, Infrastructure and-Planning on 4 January 2018 for
consideration under chapter 3 of the Minister's Guideiines arid Rules 2017 (MGR).

On 15 January 2018, the Departmerit’ of State’ Development, Manufacturing,
Infrastructure and Planning (the department) sent the Gold Coast City Council (the
council) a notice requesting additiona! information on the proposed TLPI and pausing
the assessment timeframe under the MGR util 30" January 2018.

On 30 January 2018, the department received 4n email from the council requesting
that the current pause period. be extended for a further two weeks. The department

has considered this request and agrees to éxtend the duration of the pause period.

Under chapter 3, part 3, section19.1 of the of the MGR, notice is hereby given that the
timeframe for the proposed TLP| has ;een paused. Under chapter 3, part 3, section
10.5 of the MGR, the pause that corninenced on 15 January 2018 is extended. Under
chapter 3, part 3, section 10:2 of the MGR, the timeframe is paused until 14 February
2018. The MGR process will resume at chapter 3, part 3, section 8.3 of the MGR on

15February20M8! /‘'—roy z

Fage 1 Planning and Development Services (SEQ South)
PO Box 3290
Australia Fair QLD 4215

draft this based —we understand that the council requires an

_ -1 Commented [KK1]: We may not get the email in time so can
additional 2 weeks to the current pause period,

|

_ - 7| Commented [KK2]: Wow —this is very jargonistic...
Is this per the template? Or can we simplify.
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If you require further information, | encourage you to contact Daniel Park, Senior
Planning Officer, of the department onﬁor by email at bestplanning-

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

Sent: Wednesday, 7 February 2018 4:52 PM

To: Kim Kirstein

Cc: Daniel Park; Rebecca De Vries

Subject: TLPI No. 5 (Flood) - GCCC council response 7/02/2018

Attachments: 5 December item and report.pdf; 11 October 2017 item presentation report.padf; Letterand

statement of reasons.pdf; submissions.pdf

Hi Kim,
As discussed,

Background
e On7 February 2018, Gold Coast City Council responded to the department's request for further information
and notice to pause the assessment timeframe on 15 January 2018.
e On 19 February 2018, the department’s assessment timeframe re-cemmences, regardless of the council's

response.
e The council responded via Ezi-scheme and included the four attached documents.
e The council suggested they have provided a full response to thé department'’s request.

Council response 7/02/2018
e Council are in receipt of requests for a Statements of Reasoris'under the Judicial Review Act 1991. The
council has provided these ‘requests’.
e Council identified the Councillor's resolution foi"an eatlier effective date was made at a public meeting, and
therefore the Minister should approved the ¢auncil’s request for an earlier effective date of 8 December 2017.
e Council provided some further justification to the existing arguments for why the amendment should be
enacted as a TLPI, which includes:
o development application exampies
o concerns with residents sense of safety
o issues in relation to compliznce of pylon development
o absorption capacity of tie flood plain,

The department is now considering the further information and whether there is sufficient to support the TLPI.
Regards,

Thomas Holmes

enior Planning Officer

Planning and Developmient Services (SEQ South)
Department of State Development,
Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning

() ) \!/ Iy,
Rk wanus

Ql.leensland P 07 5644 22717
Government Level 1, 7 Short Street, Southport QLD 4215

PO Box 3290, Australia Fair QLD 4215
www.dsdmip.qld.gov.au
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ITEM9 CITY PLANNING

FLOOD FREE LAND TLPI
PD113/1303(P1) CONFIDENT!AL

Refer 11 page attachments
1 BASIS FOR CONFIDENTIALITY

(851 | recommend that this report be considered in Closed Session pursuant to section
275 (1) of the Local Government Regulation 2012 for the reason that the maiter
involves

(h)  other business for which a public discussion would be likely-to prejtidice the
interests of the local government or someone else, or enable a person to gain
a financial advantage.

1.2 | recommend that the report/attachment be deemed non-cenfidential except for those
parts deemed by the Chief Executive Officer to remain confideritial in accordance with
sections 171 (3) and 200 (5) of the Local Government-Act 2009.

2 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report seeks Council's endorsement of the proposed 7emporary Local Planning
Instrument No.5 (Flood Free Land and Residentiai Risk Reduction) 2017 (TLPI No.5 2017).
The proposed TLPI No.5 2017 has been prepared further to a Council resolution
G17.1017.013 endorsing a new flood policy to’ensure residential development is not
exposed to:

e a flood inundation depth greater than 0.6 metres; and
» a flood water velocity greater than 0.8 metiegs per second.

In addition, the proposed TLPI No.5 2017 wilt aiso require Reconfiguring a Lot applications
for residential, commercial and industrial’ uses to provide a sufficient area of land at or above
the Designated Flood Level (DFL).

The purpose of the proposed TLP! No.52017 is to prevent the potential loss of the city’s
flood resilience and enable the sustairiable mitigation of flood hazard on flood affected land.
As such, the TLPI No.5.2017 will amend the operation of the Flood overlay code provided in
City Plan by including new overall outcomes and assessment benchmarks to be applied
during development assessment. It is envisaged that the TLPI No.5 2017 will have a life
span of 2 years from the following proposed commencement date of 8 December 2017.

Section 9(4) of the Planning Act 2016 allows Council, with the Minister's agreement, to make
the TLPI take effect from the day Council resolved to give the TLPI and the request for an
earlier effective day to the Minister for approval.

Councitis requested to endorse the proposed TLPI No.5 2017 included in Attachment A
which will aliow Council to write to the Minister seeking its approval. Further to the Minister's
approval, Council will be required to adopt the draft TLPI No.5 2017.

3 PURPOSE OF REPORT

The purpose of this report is to:

UNAUTHORISED RELEASE OF CONFIDENTIAL REPORTS OR INFORMATION
may be an offence under the Local Government Act 2009 and other
legislation and could result in disqualification from office and a

penalty of up to 100 units. CONFIDENTIAL
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ITEM 9 (Continued)
FLOOD FREE LAND TLPI
PD113/1303(P1) CONFIDENTIAL

(a) seek Council's endorsement of Temporary Local Planning Instrument No.5 {Flocd
Free Land and Residential Risk Reduction) 2017 provided in Attachment A of this
report; and

(b) seek permission for Council to write to the Minister:
a. seeking approval of the Temporary Local Planning Instrument Na.5 (Ficod
Free Land and Residential Risk Reduction) 2017 (TLPI No.52017);
b. providing the TLPI No.5 2017 and relevant supporting material identified in
Schedule 3 of the Minister's Guidelines and Rules; and
c. seeking approval for the commencement of the TLPi-No.5 2017, to be 8
December 2017.

Once the Minister provides a response, a further report will be presented to Council to seek
endorsement to adopt the TLPI No.5 2017.

4 PREVIOUS RESOLUTIONS
On the 11 October 2017, Council resolved to (G17.1017.013):

2 To endorse the proposed minimum flood free land policy as identified in Attachment 1
to inform updates to the Flood overlay code as part of Major update 2 package.

5. To prepare a Temporary Local Planning 'nistrument to implement minimum flood free
land and return a TLPI package fcr endorsement before making a submission to the
Minister for Planning.

On the 22 November 2017, City Planning Committee resolved the Design for Flood package
to be progressed to State Interest review. This package includes approval of the necessary
changes to the proposed wording of the Flood overlay code to make it consistent with TLPI.

5 DISCUSSION
5.1 Background

Council resolved on 11/ October 2017 (G17.1017.013) to prepare a Temporary Local
Planning Instrumenit {TLPI) to implement the flood policy position described as ‘Minimum
flood free land’,

The ‘Minimum flood-free land’ policy aims to ensure that development in flood affected areas
of the city are exnosed to no more than a medium flood hazard. A medium flood hazard
includes, among other elements, development exposed to:

« aflocad inundation depth of up to and less than 0.6 metres; and
= - a flood water velocity of no more than 0.8 metres per second.

The City Plan Major update 2 amendment package includes updates to the Flood overlay
code to implement the ‘Minimum flood free land’ policy. However, at the time of preparing
this report, Major 2 update is in the process of being sent to the minister for the State Interest

UNAUTHORISED RELEASE OF CONFIDENTIAL REPORTS OR INFORMATION

may be an offence under the Local Government Act 2009 and other

legislation and could result in disqualification from office and a CON FIDENTIAL
penalty of up to 100 units.
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ITEM 9 (Continued)
FLOOD FREE LAND TLPI
PD113/1303(P1) CONFIDENTIAL

review. Given that the plan making process is a long-term process, it is considered that
enacting the policy through a TLPI will provide for the maintenance of the City's flood
resilience while Major update 2 is being processed through the required statutory process.

5.2 Proposed TLPI

The resolution (G17.1017.013) to prepare the TLPI, included proposed wording to implement
the ‘Minimum flood free land’ policy. In preparing the TLPI, this wording was refined. It is
therefore necessary under s 9(4) of the Planning Act 2016 for Council to-again resolve to
make the TLPI with the proposed commencement date of the 8 December 2017

Attachment A contains the proposed Temporary Local Planning Instrument No.5 (Minimum
Land Above Designated Flood Level and Residential Risk Reduction) 2017 and supporting
Explanatory Statement. '

The proposed TLPI will affect the operation of City Plan (version 4) Flood overlay code
through:

a) Inserting additional assessable development criteria’ PO16 and PO17 to ensure that a
Reconfiguring a Lot application provides suificient land above the designated flood
level (DFL) for residential, commercial and indiustrial uses. In addition, ensuring land
is above the DFL reduces flood risks te users of the site by minimising the possibility
of a high flood hazard occurring adjacent to the developments building footprint.

b) Amending PO9/A09 to remove any inconsistency that may arise in the assessment
of residential uses under the proposed PO16; and

c) Inserting new additional overall outcomes {1}, (m) and (n) to the Flood overlay code to
ensure:

i) Residential development is'not of a type or design nor occurs on land that is
exposed to high or extremie flood hazards;

ii) Avoiding the developmerit of lots on land which does not have a sufficient
area of land above the DFL; and

iif) Discouraging of trie proliferation of multi dwelling development on constructed
platforms above fload affected land.

5.3 The need for a TLPI

Attachment B coritaing the Explanatory Statement that Council is required to provide to the
Minister with our request to/(a) approve the TLPI and (b) seek a commencement date from
the 8 December2017. in the Explanatory Statement the following points are made in support
of making the TLPi.
‘Section 23(1) of the Planning Act 2016 says that a local government may make a TLPI
if the local goveirnment and Minister decide —

(a) there is significant risk of serious adverse cultural, economic, environmental or
social zonditions happening in the local government area; and;

(b) “the delay involved in using the process in sections 18 to 22 to make or amend
another local planning instrument would increase the risk; and

the making of the TLPI would not adversely affect State interests.

-~
S

UNAUTHORISED RELEASE OF CONFIDENTIAL REPORTS OR INFORMATION

may be an offence under the Local Government Act 2009 and other

legislation and could result in disqualification from office and a CON FI DENTIAL
penalty of up to 100 units.
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ITEM 9 (Continued)
FLOOD FREE LAND TLPI
PD113/1303(P1) CONFIDENTIAL

The proposed TLPI is considered to satisfy each of these requirements.

(a) The city’s floodplains are critical in providing for significant flood storage,
environmental values and open space requirements. It is essential that the ifood
absorption capacity of floodplains is maintained. As discussed above in section 2 of
this statement, there are significant risks if the local government does ot implement
a requirement for a sufficient area of land above the Designated Floed Level and
does not regulate building on platforms on highly flood affected land, namely:

i. an increase in the extent of the development footprint aéross the
floodplain beyond the natural yield of the land regiiired for flood
protection; and

ii. negative impacts on residents’ sense or safety aiid expectations
relating to development in a floodpiain.

(b) Given the importance of maintaining the long-term functior’ and resilience of the city’s
floodplains, it is proposed that this immediate risk be addressed by way of the
proposed TLPI as an effective tool that can apply in the interim period while an
amendment to the City Plan is finalised,

(c) The proposed TLPI would not adversely aifect State interests as the maintenance of
the flood absorption capacity and the marnagenient of community expectations
relating to development in a floodplain-are matters currently regulated by the Flood
Overlay Code in the City Plan. The pioposed TLPI is consistent with the State
interest quideline — Natural hazards, rist and resilience dated April 2016 which
contemplates local government including development requirements in planning
schemes with respect to development within an area affected by a natural hazard
such as flood. *

By seeking the Minister's suppoit for a commencement date being the 8 December 2017,
Council will be better able to provide advice to applicants as to how the TLPI is to be
addressed in development applications. The alternative to commencing the TLPI on the 8
December is to await the following steps to be completed:

1. The Minister considers our proposal to make a TLPI and issues a letter of approval;

2. Upon receiving a/letter of approval, Council resolves to adopt the TLPI; and

3. The TLPlIcomiences on the day it is gazetted (estimated to be early to mid 2018).

Notwithstanding the above the Minister may decide to approve the TLPI and not support our
request fer an earlier commencement date.

6 ALIGNMENT TO THE CORPORATE PLAN, CORPORATE STRATEGIES AND
GPERATIONAL PLAN

Gold Coast 2022 outcome 3.1, “Our City is Safe”.

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

7 GOLD COAST 2018 COMMONWEALTH GAMES IMPACT
No impact
8 FUNDING AND RESOURCING REQUIREMENTS

Budget/Funding Considerations

No additional budget or resources will be required.

9 RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk No CO000644.

Natural Hazards Resilience — The City is not adequately resilient to-natural hazards shocks

resulting in loss of life, cessation of Council business, reputational damage and economic
downturn.

10 STATUTORY MATTERS

Section 23 of the Planning Act 2016 provides the statutory basis for making or amending
TLPIs.

This TLPI is required to address the State Planning'Policy 2017, and in particular the Natural
Hazards, Risk and Resilience interest.

11 COUNCIL POLICIES

Not applicable.

12 DELEGATIONS

Not Applicable.

13 COORDINATION & CONSULTATION

Name and/or Title of the  Directorate or Is the Stakeholder Satisfied
Stakeholder Consulted Organisation With Content of Report and
Recommendations (Yes/No)
(comment as appropriate)

Supervising Enginser Planning and Environment Yes
Hydraulics & Water Quality

Coordinator City Plan Planning and Environment Yes
A/City Saiicitor, Legal Office of the Chief Operating Yes
Services Officer

14 STAKEHOLDER IMPACTS

External / community stakeholder Impacts

UNAUTHORISED RELEASE OF CONFIDENTIAL REPORTS OR INFORMATION

may be an offence under the Local Government Act 2009 and other CO NF'DENTI A L

legislation and could result in disqualification from office and a
penalty of up to 100 units.
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ITEM 9 (Continued)
FLOOD FREE LAND TLPI
PD113/1303(P1) CONFIDENTIAL,

" The intention of this TLPI is to improve community safety through the provision of a
viable solution for flood-cognisant development.

Internal (Organisational) Stakeholder Impacts

u This TLPI will assist the development assessment process, in the interini Lintii Major
update 2 to be adopted

15 TIMING

Upon Council resolving to adopt the TLPI, the proposed instrumerit and explanatory
document will be forwarded to the Minister for approval. It is recemriendad that Council
adopt the TLPI, with a commencement date of 8 December 2517.

16 CONCLUSION

Council have endorsed a flood policy position ‘Minimum flood freeland’ and have resolved to
prepare a TLPI. The TLPI No.5 2017 will amend the City P!an (version 4) Flood overlay code
to ensure the abovementioned policy will be in place until City Plan Major update 2 is
approved.

The proposed TLPI No.5 2017 is provided in‘Attacliment A and it is recommended that
Council endorse the adoption of the TLPI and sending it to the Minister for approval with the
material in Attachment B. It is also recornmended that the TLPI No.5 2017 has a
commencement date of 8 December 2017.

17 RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that Council rescives as follows:

1 That the report/attachrent be deemed non-confidential except for those parts
deemed by the Chief Executive Officer to remain confidential in accordance with
sections 171 (3) and 200 (5) of the Local Government Act 20009.

2 To prepare a Temporary Local Planning Instrument to implement minimum flood
free land.

3 To endorse tke pioposed Temporary Local Planning Instrument No.5 (Flood Free
Land and Risk Raduction) 2017, in the form of Attachment 1.

4 That the commencement date of Temporary Local Planning Instrument No.5 (Flood
Free Land and Risk Reduction) 2017 be 8 December 2017.

5 That Councii writes to the Minister to request approval of the Temporary Local
Planning Instrument No.5 (Flood Free Land and Residential Risk Reduction) 2017
and consideration of a 8 December 2017 commencement date.

6~ That Council provide the Temporary Local Planning Instrument No.5 (Flood Free
Land and Residential Risk Reduction) 2017 and relevant supporting material in the
form of Attachment B in accordance with Schedule 3 of the Minister’s Guidelines
and Rules.

UNAUTHORISED RELEASE OF CONFIDENTIAL REPORTS OR INFORMATION

may be an offence under the Local Government Act 2009 and other

legislation and could result in disqualification from office and a CON FID E NTIAL
penalty of up to 100 units.
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ITEM 9 (Continued)
FLOOD FREE LAND TLPI

PD113/1303(P1) CONFIDENTIAL

7  Further to the Minister’s response, a report will be brought back to Council seekivig
adoption of the Temporary Local Planning Instrument No.5 (Flood Free Land and
Residential Risk Reduction) 2017.

Author: Authorised by:

Pradesh Ramiah Dyan Currie

Supervising Planner Director Planning and Environment
29 November 2017

UNAUTHORISED RELEASE OF CONFIDENTIAL REPORTS OR INFORMATION
may be an offence under the Local Government Act 2009 and other

legislation and could result in disqualification from office and a CONFID ENTlAL

penalty of up to 100 units.
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Division 1 — Written statement as to why the local
government proposes to make the TLPI and how the
proposed TLPI complies with section 23(1) of the
Planning Act 2016

As required by Minister’s Guidelines and Rules — July 2017, Schedule 3
1 Description of the proposed TLPI

The proposed temporary local planning instrument is cited as Temporary Locai Planning Instrument No. 5
(Minimum Land Above Designated Flood Level and Residential Risk Reduclion) 2617 (proposed TLPI).

The proposed TLPI applies to all of the City of Gold Coast planning scheme ared.
The proposed TLPI seeks to affect the current Planning Scheme being the City Flaii 2016 Version 4.

The proposed TLPI creates new assessment benchmarks that will apply to the gssessment of development
applications against the Flood overlay code to reduce risk for residentia! development and require
development to have a sufficient area of land above the Designated Flood Level to mitigate the risks and/or
hazards associated with flooding.

Under the Planning Act 2016 (the Act) section 23(6), a temporary lacal planning instrument operates for up
to two years. It is intended that the proposed TLPI will be rzpealed by adoption of an amendment of the City
Plan that specifically repeals the TLPI, in accordance with section 24.

2 Why the local government has proposed to make the TLPI

The current Flood Overlay Code in the City Plan is uricieay in relation to the level of acceptable risk for
residential development and does not identify a minimum requirement for flood free land. This has led to the
creation of highly engineered development solutions, such as buildings on platforms, in high and extreme
flood hazard areas of the city's floodplains.

Information provided to the local government feilowing the major flood events associated with ex-tropical
cyclone Debbie in March 2017 revealed issues with the recent emergence of the building on platform
approach with provides for floodplain storage within void spaces between the natural ground level and
habitable floor levels, namely:

(1)  concerns by residents about their sense of safety in response to deep flood water under their buildings
and debris impacting their house and the use of spaces beneath the buildings for storage or ancillary
living space; and

(2) concerns raised by emergency services personnel about the potential for flooding of residential levels
and a general misundeistanding about the building on platform design approach.

To prevent comproriising the long-term function and resilience of the city’s floodplains and to manage
community expectations relating to development in a floodplain, the local government has decided to make
the proposed TLFI to seek to'ensure that:

(1)  Residential development (including development elevated above Designated Flood Level) only occurs
in areas that are exposed to flood inundation depths and velocities not exceeding those applicable to
medium flood hazard and does not occur in areas that are exposed to a high or extreme flood hazard.

(2) Lets have a sufficient area of land above the Designated Flood Level to accommodate the intended
use and effectively and adequately mitigate the risks and/or hazards associated with flooding.

3 How the proposed TLPI complies with the Act section 23(1)

Section 23(1) of the Act says that a local government may make a TLPI if the local government and Minister
decide —

(a) there is significant risk of serious adverse cultural, economic, environmental or social conditions
happening in the local government area; and;

iSPOT:#65816803 v2 - ATTACHMENT B - TEMPORARY LOCAL PLANNING INSTRUMENT EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
NO 5 (MINIMUM LAND ABOVE DESIGNATED FLOOD LEVEL AND RESIDENTIAL RISK REDUCTION) 2017 Page 1 of 2
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(b)

(c)

the delay involved in using the process in sections 18 to 22 to make or amend another local plaiiiiing
instrument would increase the risk; and

the making of the TLPI would not adversely affect State interests.

The proposed TLPI is considered to satisfy each of these requirements.

(a)

(b)

(©

The city’s floodplains are critical in providing for significant flood storage, environmental values and
open space requirements. It is essential that the flood absorption capacity of floodplains is maintained.
As discussed above in section 2 of this statement, there are significant risks if‘the iocal government
does not implement a requirement for a sufficient area of land above the Designated ~lood Level and
does not regulate building on platforms on highly flood affected land, namely:

(i)  anincrease in the extent of the development footprint across the floodplair{ keyond the natural yield of the
land required for flood protection; and

(i)  negative impacts on residents’ sense of safety and expectations relatirig to developrnent in a floodplain,

Given the importance of maintaining the long-term function and resilience of the city's floodplains, it is
proposed that this immediate risk be addressed by way of the preposed TLFias an effective tool that
can apply in the interim period while an amendment to the City Plan is finalised.

The proposed TLPI would not adversely affect State interests as the maintenance of the flood
absorption capacity and the management of community expectiations relating to development in a
floodplain are matters currently regulated by the Flood Overlay Code’in the City Plan, The proposed
TLPI is consistent with the State interest guideline — Natural hazards, risk and resilience dated April
2016 which contemplates local government including developiment requirements in planning schemes
with respect to development within an area affected by a natural hazard such as flood.

iSPOT:#65816803 v2 - ATTACHMENT B - TEMPORARY LOCAL PLANNING INSTRUMENT EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
NO 5 (MINIMUM LAND ABOVE DESIGNATED FLOOD LEVEL AND RESIDENTIAL RISK REDUCTION) 2017 Page 2 of 2
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Part 1 — Preliminary
1 Short title

This temporary local planning instrument may be cited as Temporary Local Planning Instrument No, &
(Minimum Land Above Designated Flood Level and Residential Risk Reduction) 2017.

2 Object

The object of the temporary local planning instrument is to prevent the potential loss of the city's flood
resilience and enable the sustainable mitigation of flood hazard on land in flood &ffected areas in the
planning scheme area by —

(@) identifying land that is at or above the Designated Flood Level as minirmum fiood free land;

(b)  affecting the operation of the City Plan by including additional assessmerit benchmarks in the Flood
Overlay Code so that:

(A) development for Residential Uses (including development elevated above Designated Flood
Level) only occurs in areas that are exposed to flood inundation depths and velocities not
exceeding those applicable to medium flood hazard and does ot occur in areas that are
exposed to a high flood hazard or extreme flood hazard; and

(B) lots have a sufficient area of land above the Designated Flood Level to effectively and
adequately mitigate the risks and/or hazards associated with flooding.

3 Dictionary

The dictionary in Schedule 1 defines particular words;used in this temporary local planning instrument.

4 Interpretation

Where a term used in this temporary local planning instriment is not defined under section 3 (Dictionary),
the term shall, unless the context otherwise indicaies or requires, have the meaning assigned to it by—

(@  The Planning Act 2016;
(b)  the City Plan, where the termvis not'definec! in the Planning Act 2016.

5 Duration of temporary local planning instrument

This temporary local planning instrument will have effect in accordance with section 23(6) of the Planning Act
2016 for a period not exceeding two years from the commencement of this temporary local planning
instrument.

The commencement date of this ternporary local planning instrument is 8th December 2017.

Part 3 — Application of the temporary local planning
instrument

6 Area tc which temporary local planning instrument applies

This temporary local planning instrument applies to all of the planning scheme area.

7 Relaticnship with City Plan

if the/City Pian is inconsistent with this temporary local planning instrument, this temporary local planning
instrument—

(a) prevails to the extent of the inconsistency; and
(b)  has effect in place of the City Plan, but only to the extent of the inconsistency.

iSPOT:#65816395 v2 - ATTACHMENT A - TEMPORARY LOCAL PLANNING INSTRUMENT
NO 5 (MINIMUM LAND ABOVE DESIGNATED FLOOD LEVEL AND RESIDENTIAL RISK REDUCTION) 2017 Page 2 of 4
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8 Application of Temporary Local Planning Instrument

This temporary local planning instrument applies to development applications being assessed against thie
assessment benchmarks in Part B of the Flood Overlay Code for assessable development pursuant to the
City Plan.

Part 4 — Effect on the City Plan
9 Affected provisions of the City Plan

This temporary local planning instrument affects the operation of the Flood Overlay. Code in the City Plan by:
(@ Inserting the following additional overall outcomes in Section 8.2.8.2(3) of the Flocd Overlay Code:

“()  avoiding development of Residential Uses on land that is expased to high\and extreme flood
hazards;

(m) avoiding the development of lots that do not have a sufficient area of land above the Designated
Flood Level; and

(n)  discouraging the proliferation of Residential Uses constructed on/platforms above Flood
Affected Land.”

()  Replacing the assessable development benchmarks PO9 and-AO9 in Part B Table 8.2.8-2 Flood
overlay code — for assessable development with the following:

Table 8.2.8-2: Flood overlay code — for assessable develobment

Performance outcomes } Alcceptable outcomes
Hazard considerations for development

) e
PO9 AQ9
Development for land uses listed in Table 8.2.8-4 must be Development is to be designed and constructed so that
designed and constructed to avoid causing undue exposure’ _the development does not give rise, or cause exposure,
to flood hazard. to more than the degree of flood hazard specified in

The application of this performance outcome to Residential | Table 8.2.8-4 determined by applying the criteria and
Uses is subject to the application of perforinance outcome standards set out in Table 8.2.8-5.

PO16, which is to prevail. The application of this acceptable outcome to Residential
Uses is subject to the application of performance
outcome PO16, which is to prevail.

(¢) Inserting the following additional assessable development benchmarks into Part B Table 8.2.8-2 Flood
overlay code — for assessable development:

Table 8.2.8-2: Flood overlay code — for assessable development

Performance outcomes Acceptable outcomes

Hazard considerations for residential development

PO16 AO16

To ensure that developrient for Residential Uses is located No acceptable outcome is provided.
so as to effectively mitigate risks to life and property, such
developmerit must not occur on land that is exposed to
either or bouth cf the following flood hazards:

(@) Fload inundaticn depth exceeding 0.6 metres; and

(b) Flood water velocity exceeding 0.8 metres per second.

Note: This also applies to development elevated above
Designated Flood Level.

iISPOT:#65816395 v2 - ATTACHMENT A - TEMPORARY LOCAL PLANNING INSTRUMENT
NO 5 (MINIMUM LAND ABOVE DESIGNATED FLOOD LEVEL AND RESIDENTIAL RISK REDUCTION) 2017 Page 3 of 4
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Performance outcomes

Acceptable outcomes

Minimum area above Designated Flood Level

PO17

Development involving reconfiguring a lot must ensure that
any lot created has a sufficient area of land above the
Designated Flood Level to effectively accommodate the
associated intended use while also adequately mitigating the
risks and/or hazards associated with flooding.

AO17.1

Where development associated with recanfiguring a lot is
for a Residential Use and involves lot sizes of 500m? or
greater, 50% of the area of each Iot or 400’ of each lot
(whichever is greater) must be af oi-above the
Designated Flood Level.

AO17.2

Where development associated with reconfiguring a lot,
is for a Residential Use and-invalves /ot sizes of less
than 500m?, 70% of the area of each fot or 300m? of
each lot (whichever is'greater) must be at or above the
Designated Flood Lavel.

AO17.3

Where develocprment associated with reconfiguring a lot,
is for a Comiviercial Use or an Industrial Use, 60% of the
area of each lai must b2 at or above the Designated
Flood Level.

Schedule 1 — Dictionary (Section 2)

“Commercial Use” means the same as commercial use’defiiied in the Planning Regulation 2017
“Flood Affected Land” means land any part of which.is below the Designated Flood Level.
"Industrial Use" means activites listed in Schedule-1'Table SC1.1.2: Defined Activity Group, Column 1

Activity Group Industrial activities, Column 2 Uses

“Residential Use" means the use of land for a Dweiling House, Dwelling Unit, Multiple Dwelling or Dual

Occupancy.

iSPOT:#65816395 v2 - ATTACHMENT A - TEMPORARY LOCAL PLANNING INSTRUMENT
NO 5 (MINIMUM LAND ABOVE DESIGNATED FLOOD LEVEL AND RESIDENTIAL RISK REDUCTION) 2017 Page 4 of 4
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748th Council Meeting 8 December 2017 ADOPTED REPORT

City Planning Committee Meeting 5 December 2017 725
ITEM 9 CITY PLANNING
FLOOD FREE LAND TLPI

PD113/1303(P1) \/

Refer 11 page attachments
1 BASIS FOR CONFIDENTIALITY

1.1 | recommend that this report be considered in Closed Session pursuant to section
275 (1) of the Local Government Regulation 2012 for the reason that the rnatie!
involves

(h)  other business for which a public discussion would be likely to prejudice the
interests of the local government or someone else, 01 enable a person to gain
a financial advantage.

1.2 | recommend that the report/attachment be deemed nen-coniidential except for those
parts deemed by the Chief Executive Officer to remain confidential in accordance with
sections 171 (3) and 200 (5) of the Local Government Aci-2009.

2 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report seeks Council's endorsement of the preposed Temporary Local Planning
Instrument No.5 (Flood Free Land and Residentizl Rick Reduction) 2017 (TLPI No.5 2017).
The proposed TLPI No.5 2017 has been prepared furtherio a Council resolution
G17.1017.013 endorsing a new flood policy to enstre residential development is not
exposed to: :

e a flood inundation depth greater than-0.6 metres; and
e a flood water velocity greater than 0.8 metres per second.

In addition, the proposed TLPI No.5 2017 will also require Reconfiguring a Lot applications
for residential, commercial and irndustrial uses to provide a sufficient area of land at or above
the Designated Flood Level (DFL).

The purpose of the proposed TLF! No.5 2017 is to prevent the potential loss of the city’s
flood resilience and enable the sustzinable mitigation of flood hazard on flood affected land.
As such, the TLPI No.5 2017 will amend the operation of the Flood overlay code provided in
City Plan by includirig new-overail outcomes and assessment benchmarks to be applied
during development assessment. It is envisaged that the TLPI No.5 2017 will have a life
span of 2 years {rém the following proposed commencement date of 8 December 2017.

Section 9(4)¢cf the Planning Act 2016 allows Council, with the Minister's agreement, to make
the TLPI take effecifroim the day Council resolved to give the TLPI and the request for an
earlier effective day to the Minister for approval.

Courgcit.is requested to endorse the proposed TLPI No.5 2017 included in Attachment A

which will allow Council to write to the Minister seeking its approval. Further to the Minister's
approval, Ceuncil will be required to adopt the draft TLPI No.5 2017.

3 PURPOSE OF REPORT
The purpose of this report is to:
(a) seek Council's endorsement of Temporary Local Planning Instrument No.5 (Flood

Free Land and Residential Risk Reduction) 2017 provided in Attachment A of this
report; and

RTIP1718-047 - Part 4 Page Number 21



748th Council Meeting 8 December 2017 ADOPTED REPORT

City Planning Committee Meeting 5 December 2017 725
ITEM9 CITY PLANNING
FLOOD FREE LAND TLPI

PD113/1303(P1) >N/

Refer 11 page attachments
1 BASIS FOR CONFIDENTIALITY

1.1 | recommend that this report be considered in Closed Session pursuant to-section
275 (1) of the Local Government Regulation 2012 for the reason that the rnatier
involves

(h)  other business for which a public discussion would be iikely to prejudice the
interests of the local government or someone else, or'enable a person to gain
a financial advantage.

1.2 | recommend that the report/attachment be deemed nori-confidential except for those
parts deemed by the Chief Executive Officer to remain confidential in accordance with
sections 171 (3) and 200 (5) of the Local Government Aci-2009.

2 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report seeks Council's endorsement of the proposed Temporary Local Planning
Instrument No.5 (Flood Free Land and Residential Risk Reduction) 2017 (TLPI No.5 2017).
The proposed TLPI No.5 2017 has been prepared further to a Council resolution
G17.1017.013 endorsing a new flood policy to ensuie residential development is not
exposed to:

e aflood inundation depth greater than 0.6 metres; and
e aflood water velocity greater than 0.8 meires per second.

[n addition, the proposed TLPI No.5 2017 wili also require Reconfiguring a Lot applications
for residential, commercial and industrialuses to provide a sufficient area of land at or above
the Designated Flood Level (DFL).

The purpose of the proposed TLF! No.5 2017 is to prevent the potential loss of the city's
flood resilience and enable the sustainable mitigation of flood hazard on flood affected land.
As such, the TLPI No.& 2017 will amend the operation of the Flood overlay code provided in
City Plan by including -new-overzl!' outcomes and assessment benchmarks to be applied
during developmentassessment. It is envisaged that the TLPI No.5 2017 will have a life
span of 2 years ficm the following proposed commencement date of 8 December 2017.

Section 9(4) of the Plannirig Act 2016 allows Council, with the Minister's agreement, to make
the TLPI take effect frem the day Council resolved to give the TLPI and the request for an
earlier effective/day to the Minister for approval.

Councilis requested to endorse the proposed TLPI No.5 2017 included in Attachment A
which will allow Council to write to the Minister seeking its approval. Further to the Minister's
approval, Ceuncil will be required to adopt the draft TLPI No.5 2017,

3 PURPOSE OF REPORT

The purpose of this report is to:

(a) seek Council’'s endorsement of Temporary Local Planning Instrument No.5 (Flood
Free Land and Residential Risk Reduction) 2017 provided in Attachment A of this
report; and
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ITEM 9 (Continued)
FLOOD FREE LAND TLPI
PD113/1303(P1)

(b) seek permission for Council to write to the Minister:
a. seeking approval of the Temporary Local Planning Instrument No.5 (Fload
Free Land and Residential Risk Reduction) 2017 (TLPI No.5 2017);
b. providing the TLPI No.5 2017 and relevant supporting material ideniified in
Schedule 3 of the Minister's Guidelines and Rules; and
c. seeking approval for the commencement of the TLPI No.5 2017, io be 38
December 2017.

Once the Minister provides a response, a further report will be presegnted to Council to seek
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

3. To prepare a Temporary Local Planning Instrument to implement minimum flood free
land and return a TLPI package for endorsenient before making a submission to the
Minister for Planning.

On the 22 November 2017, City Planning Comimiitee resolved the Design for Flood package
to be progressed to State Interest review. This package includes approval of the necessary
changes to the proposed wording of the Flood cverlay code to make it consistent with TLPI.

5 DISCUSSION
51 Background

Council resolved on 11 October 2017(G17.1017.013) to prepare a Temporary Local
Planning Instrument (TLPI) fo impiement the flood policy position described as ‘Minimum
flood free land’.

The ‘Minimum flood free land*/policy aims to ensure that development in flood affected areas
of the city are expesed to rio more than a medium flood hazard. A medium flood hazard
includes, amoeng otier eleinents, development exposed to:

e aflood inundation depth of up to and less than 0.6 metres; and -
e aflood water velocity of no more than 0.8 metres per second.

The City Plan Major update 2 amendment package includes updates to the Flood overlay
code to img&ment the ‘Minimum flood free land’

REDACTED

5.2 Proposed TLPI
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ITEM 9 (Continued)
FLOOD FREE LAND TLPI
PD113/1303(P1)

N
REDAGTED AN

Attachment A contains the proposed Temporary Local Planning Instrument N&.5 {Minimum
Land Above Designated Flood Level and Residential Risk Reduction) 2017 and supporting
Explanatory Statement.

The proposed TLPI will affect the operation of City Plan (version 4) Flood overlay code
through:

a) Inserting additional assessable development criteria PO16 and PO17 to ensure that a
Reconfiguring a Lot application provides sufficient fand above the designated flood
level (DFL) for residential, commercial and industrial uses. In-addition, ensuring land
is above the DFL reduces flood risks to users of the sile by minimising the possibility
of a high flood hazard occurring adjacent to the developments building footprint.

b) Amending PO9/A09 to remove any inconsistency that may arise in the assessment
of residential uses under the proposed PO16; and

c) Inserting new additional overall outcomes (l), (m) and (n) to the Flood overlay code to
ensure:

i) Residential development is not of atype or design nor occurs on land that is
exposed to high or extreme flood hazards;

i) Avoiding the development of lots orviand which does not have a sufficient
area of land above the DFL; and

iii) Discouraging of the proliferation of multi dwelling development on constructed
platforms above flood affected land.
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ITEM 9 (Continued)
FLOOD FREE LAND TLPI
PD113/1303(P1)

REDACTED

b R T R T

T /A

6 ALIGNMENT TO THE CORPORATE PLAN, CORPORATE STRATEGIES AND
OPERATIONAL PLAN

Gold Coast 2022 oautcome 3.1 ,/“Our City is Safe".

7 GOLD CCAST 2018 COMMONWEALTH GAMES IMPACT
No impact

8 FUNDING AND RESOURCING REQUIREMENTS

Budget/Funding Considerations

Mo additional budget or resources will be required.
a RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk No CO000644.

Natural Hazards Resilience — The City is not adequately resilient to natural hazards shocks
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

This TLPI is required to address the State Planning Policy 2017, and in particular the Natural
Hazards, Risk and Resilience interest.

11 COUNCIL POLICIES

Not applicable.
12 DELEGATIONS

Not Applicable.

13 COORDINATION & CONSULTATION

Name and/or Title of the
Stakeholder Consulted

Directorate or
Organisation

Is the Stakeholder Satisfied
With Content of Report and
Recommendations (Yes/No)
(comment as appropriate)

Supervising Engineer Planning and Environment Yes
Hydraulics & Water Quality

Coordinator City Plan Planning and Environment Yes
A/City Solicitor, Legal Office of the Chief Operating Yes

Services Officer

14 STAKEHOLDER IMPACTS
External / community stakeheldsr Impacts

= The intention of this TLPI is to improve community safety through the provision of a
viable solution for flood-cognisant development.

TIMING
Upon ‘Council resolving to adopt the TLPI, the proposed instrumentm
!/ Blwill be forwarded to the Minister for approval. It is recommended that Council
op LP{, with a commencement date of 8 December 2017.
6 CONCLUSION
Councii have endorsed a flood policy position ‘Minimum flood free land’ and have resolved to
prepare a TLPI. The TLPI No.5 2017 will amend the City Plan (version 4) Flood overlay code

to 2nsure the abovementioned policy will be in place until City Plan Major update 2 is
approved.
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ITEM 9 (Continued)
FLOOD FREE LAND TLPI
PD113/1303(P1) N/

The proposed TLPI No.5 2017 is provided in Attachment A and it is recommended that
Council endorse the adoption of the TLPI and sending it to the Minister for approval RN
lt is also recommended that the TLPI No.5 2017 has a
commencement date of 8 December 2017.

17 RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that Council resolves as follows:

1 That the report/attachment be deemed non-confidential except for those parts
deemed by the Chief Executive Officer to remain confidential inn accordance with
sections 171 (3) and 200 (5) of the Local Government Act 2009,

2 To prepare a Temporary Local Planning Instrument to impleinent minimum flood
free land.

3 To endorse the proposed Temporary Local Planning Instritment No.5 (Flood Free
Land and Risk Reduction) 2017, in the form of Attachment 1.

4 That the commencement date of Temporary Locai Planning Instrument No.5 (Flood
Free Land and Risk Reduction) 2017 be & December 2017.

5 That Council writes to the Minister to request appyroval of the Temporary Local
Planning Instrument No.5 (Flood Free Land and Residential Risk Reduction) 2017
and consideration of a 8 December 2017 cominencement date.

6 That Council provide the Temporary Local Planning Instrument No.5 (Flood Free
Land and Residential Risk Reduction) 2017 and relevant supporting material in the
form of Attachment B in accordance withi Schedule 3 of the Minister’'s Guidelines
and Rules.

7 Further to the Minister’s response, a report will be brought back to Council seeking

adoption of the Temporary Ll.ocail Planning Instrument No.5 (Flood Free Land and
Residential Risk Reductiori) 2017.

Author: Authorised by:
Pradesh Ramiah Dyan Currie
Supervising Planner Director Planning and Environment

29 November 2017
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ITEM 8 CITY PLANNING
MAJOR UPDATE 2 — DESIGNING FOR FLOOD - MINIMUM FLOOD FREE LAND POLICY
PD113/1303(P1)

ATTACHMENT 1 - EXAMPLE OF APPLICATION EMPLOYING THE BUILDING ON
PLATFORM OUTCOME

1 BASIS FOR CONFIDENTIALITY

1.1 It is recommended that this report be considered in Closed Session pursuant to
section 275 (1) of the Local Government Regulation 2012 for the reasoi: that the
matter involves

(h)  other business for which a public discussion would be-iikely to prejudice the
interests of the local government or someone else, cr/enabie a person to gain
a financial advantage.

1.2  ltis recommended that the report/attachment be deemied nori-confidential except for
those parts deemed by the Chief Executive Officer to remain confidential in accordance
with sections 171 (3) and 200 (5) of the Local Government Act 2009.

2 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The city's floodplains are critical in providing for significant flood storage, environmental
values and open space requirements. Previously the Guragunbah (Merrimac/Carrara) Flood
Plain Structure Plan and Hydraulic Master Plans were devzloped to provide an integrated
approach for the planning and future management-cf the remaining undeveloped areas of
the Merrimac/Carrara floodplain.

The overarching outcome of these two plans. which were implemented in the City’s
superseded Planning Schemes, was to allow fer clusters of development to occur in
floodplains through balanced cut and fiii, without compromising the function of the floodplain
and the safety of residents.

However, the current Flood overlay code under City Plan does not regulate a minimum
requirement of flood free land: This'has ied to the creation of highly engineered development
solutions, such as building on wla:fog’ns,

To address this policy issue, it i1s recommended that the minimum requirement for flood free
land policy is introcduced in the Flood overlay code as part of Major update 2 and through a
Temporary Local Planaing iristrument. This policy is proposed to be triggered by the
lodgment of hoth Materiai Change of Use (MCU) and Reconfiguring a Lot (ROL)
development applications.

The introduction ef the proposed policy will ensure that:

i.”» “aportion of the land for all development remains at or above the relevant design flood
plarining level; and

i. th‘e iotential risks associated with extensive ilatform develoiment within

This matter was identified as part of the ‘Designing for Flood' item endorsed as part of the
scope for the Major 2 update.
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MAJOR UPDATE 2 — DESIGNING FOR FLOOD - MINIMUM FLOOD FREE LAND POL!CY

PD113/1303(P1)

3 PURPOSE OF REPORT

The purpose of this report is to seek Council's endorsement to introduce the “minimum flood
free land” policy into the City Plan’s Flood overlay code and to prepare a (Temporary Locai
Planning Instrument) TLPI.

4 PREVIOUS RESOLUTIONS

On 28 March 2017, Council resolved that the introductory paper, “update on natural hazard
project” be noted. This report provided Council with an outline of the proposed tpdates to
Council’s flood free access policy set out in the Flood overlay code in City Pian
(G17.0328.025).

On 30 May 2017, Council resolved to include ‘Designing for Flood' updates within the scope
for City Plan Major update 2 (G17.0530.018). This item included the inivestigation of flood
free access, minimum requirement of flood free land and other admiristrative amendments to
improve the workability of the code.

5 DISCUSSION
5.1 Background

The city’s floodplains are critical to the flood resilience of the city and have been subject to
extensive research, most notably the developmeni of the Guragunbah (Merrimac/Carrara)
Structure Plan and Hydraulic Master Plan in 1258. The Merrimac Carrara Floodplain
Structure Plan produced planning meastres for incorporation into the City of Gold Coast's
planning instruments. The extent of the Merriiiac/Carrara floodplain is illustrated in Figure 1.

Figure 1: Extent of the Merrimac/Carrara floodplain.
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The outcome of these two strategic studies was to allow clusters of development to occur
within the Merrimac/Carrara floodplain. This was to be achieved through the use of a
balanced cut-and-fill approach to elevate land within the floodplain without adversely
impacting on the functionality of the floodplain and the safety of residents.

Consequently, the criteria for assessing development in these locations reguire consideration
of cumulative impacts and the use of a balanced cut-and-fill approach. This approach meant
that during a major flood event, the elevated portions of land within the floedplain would
become islands of development within the floodplain, connected to each other ard essential
services.

There is a lack of clarity regarding minimum requirements for fleod free land in City Plan, and
more specifically in the Flood overlay code, which has led to highli en

jineered development
solutions in the floodplain, such as building on platforms‘\ i—

Such solutions facilitate the expansion of the development footprint across the city's
floodplains

5.2 Key differences in floodplain developrnentapproaches

The use of minimum flood free land and building on platiorm has been employed
Each of these/appitaches is discussed in detail below.

Y
47
ﬁ

5.2.1 Type 1 - Minimum flood free land approach
The area shown as Type 1 in Figure 2 is the manifestation of the Guragunbah Hydraulic

Master Plan, and as such, development has been designed as a cluster of islands,
connected to each other and surrounded by an extensive waterbody, created through a
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balance cut-and-fill approach, to protect the functionality of the floodplain and safety of
residents.

An aerial view of the development within the identified Type 1 area is presented in Figure 3.
It shows that buildings are on flood free land during defined flood events.

0

% %
= ASEA 7 S S]

S,

o

N

5.2.2 - Type 2 - Building on Platform approach

The area shown as Type 2 in Figure 2 represents the building on platform solution which
aveids the balance cut-and-fill approach to earthworks.

N

A
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To avoid the need to balance cut-and-fill, typically these developmentis create void spaces
between the natural ground level and habitable floor levels, which serves as the required
floodplain storage.

During major storm events, these void spaces become inundeted as the floodplain performs
its storage function. The use of the allowable floodplain storage within the void spaces was
observed during ex-tropical cyclone Debbie in March 2017. «

[ SRR/

PR . 7 R
B )

It is further noted that the development has
buildings that are only partially on platform. However, Council is now in receipt of a number
of appilications that indicate a much greater extent of platform development as illustrated in
Figure 7 with the location of the proposed development shown in Figure 8 below.
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5.4 Minimum flood free land policy drivers

The drivers for this policy include:

1) supporting sustainable development within city’s floodplains to accommodate
projected population growth;
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2) ensuring the flood absorption capacity of floodplains are maintained; and
3) managing community expectation relating to development in a floodplain.

In addition and in response to the building on platform approach, the following issues are
summarised in Table 1.

Table 1 — Building on platform discussion

‘ﬂneexpansmn oﬂhe evelo) mnif&o{pmlannss!he Efy"s lbmp'un.s\mpacls onfhe
absorption capacity of the floodplain; waterways and environimerit; and the adaphve capadty
of floodplains respondmg to fulure changes. : ]

Siilas Vo Oiferasess lalfoies Ve a sk e B Ti56d 16 B TBEWaI GVerASU oF
70 year cyda, resulting in substantial costs to the community.

Building on platform provides habitable fioors that are normeily only a few matars abova
ground level wilh potential of full mundafion of land under th building even during mlmr

floods
The use of building on platform reauires that the area under the building will be maintained to
function as floodplain storage end/or overiand flow path (i.e. cannot be builtin). Once built,

this critical aspect will be difficult to verity to ensure the development is complying with the
conditions of approval.

Increased pond‘ ing of watar and potential environmental health impacts, Based on the
Guraganbah master pian visicn, zonding of water would occur on the floodplain at a safe
(ﬁslanca fmm bu'ldings .:nd ot dredjy under lha residential bunldmgs

A key driver for the recent emergence of the building on platform approach is associated with
land valuation. As a result, it is becoming more economically feasible to engineer solutions
on highly flood affected land.

It is important to note however, that these locations are also zoned limited development. This
allows for concentrated developrent potential, where density outcomes and yield can be
attained without exiensive expansion into the flood plain (building on platform).

55 Proposed policy framework for “minimum flood free land”

Complying with the key intents of the State interest (with respect to natural hazards), it is
considered that a policy position on the provision of minimum flood free land for development
provides an apprepriate solution that addresses the drivers and challenges identified in
Section 5.4 of this report, reducing these risks to an acceptable and tolerable level.

Inaddition, the proposed reinstatement of the policy does not restrict land use intensification,
but minimises an increase in the extent of development footprint across the floodplain,
beyond thé natural yield of land required for flood protection — the primary purpose. The
natural yield of a parcel of land is defined as the maximum flood free building footprint, which
cai be created through balance cut and fill within the boundaries of the property.
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In response to stakeholder consultation, an assessment of current best practice and the
superseded flood policy framework was undertaken. It is recommended that the Flood
overlay code is updated as follows:

-.|

T

5.6 Proposed pathway for implementation

The Planning Act 2016 provides Courncil with two pathways for the City to implement the
requirement for a “minimum of floed free land”. This includes a long term and interim

approach.
5.6.1 Amending City Plan

The long term approach isto amend the Flood overlay code, which Council has already
resolved to do for City Plan Major update 2. It is anticipated this body of work will be
presented to Council for endorsement for the first round of State Interest.

5.6.2 Temporary Local Planning Instrument

N

Under Flanning Act 2016 where there are significant risks of serious adverse cultural,
economic, environmental or social conditions happening in the local government area (s23,
Pianning Act 2016), Council and the Minister of Planning may decide to prepare a Temporary
Local Planning Instrument (TLPI).

an interim approach Is recommended.

RTIP1718-047 - Part 4 Page Number 67



ADOPTED REPORT
452

ITEM 8 (Continued)
MAJOR UPDATE 2 — DESIGNING FOR FLOOD - MINIMUM FLOOD FREE LAND POLICY
PD113/1303(P1)

A TLPI can be in effect for 2 years and may suspend or affect the operation of City Plan-bhut
does not amend or repeal. Further, a TLPI is not an adverse planning change (i.e. there is no
liability to Council for compensation) and does not create a superseded planning scheme
The Minister has 20 days to approve a local government submission to make a TLPI.

It is recommended that as part of the proposed pathway for implementation: (a) Cauncil
amend the Flood overlay code to provide for a minimum of flood free land zis patt of Major
Update 2 and (b) resolve to prepare a TLPI to implement the requirement {or a minimum of
flood free land as an interim measure.

6 ALIGNMENT TO THE CORPORATE PLAN, CORPORATE 5TRATEGIES AND
OPERATIONAL PLAN

Gold Coast 2020 outcome 3.1, “Our City is Safe”.

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

This proposed update is required 4o address the State Planning Policy 2017, and in particular
the Natural Hazards, Risk and Resilience interest.

Major update 2 comnignced undei the previous statutory guideline, Making or amending a
local planning instrarnent (MALPI) and will continue to progress under this guideline.

11 COUNCIL PCLICIES
Not Applicable.
12 DELEGATIONS

Not Applicable.
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13 COORDINATION & CONSULTATION

Name and/or Title of the
Stakeholder Consulted

Directorate or
Organisation

Is the Stakeholder Satisiied
With Content of Report and
Recommendations {YesiNo)
(comment as appropriate)

Supervising Engineer
Hydraulics & Water Quality

Planning and Environment

Yes

Coordinator City Plan

Planning and Environment

Yes

Executive Coordinator

Legal Services

Yes

AN

14 STAKEHOLDER IMPACTS

External / community stakeholder Impacts

= The ultimate outcome of this policy is comrunity safety through the provision of a
viable solution for flood-cognisant develocpment.

Internal (Organisational) Stakeholder Impacts

= This policy will assist the developmeintassessment process.

15 TIMING

This matter will form part of the scope for the Major update 2 package as endorsed by
Council on 30 May 2017. It is‘anticipated this body of work will be brought back to Council

with the complete draft package prior to state interest review.

Council may resolve to make a TLPI immediately. Pursuant to this decision a TLPI package
can be brought back to Council prior to submission to the Minister for Planning. A Minister
has 20 days to either approve or not approve Council’s submission.

16 CONCLUSION

The city’s floodplains are critical to the flood resilience of the city. The policy and practice of
sustainable flood risk‘ management provides for community safety in balance with
environmenial and development outcomes.

The minimum flood free land policy position provides an acceptable solution to the
abovementioned challenge of sustainable development within the city’s floodplains.

The recommended policy framework is proposed to be implemented in the Flood overlay
code as part of Major update 2. It is anticipated this body of work will be brought back to
Council with the complete drafted package prior to state interest review.
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In respbnse to the long-term amendment process via Making or amending a local plarining
instrument (MALPI) and the potential loss of city's flood resilience associated with building on
platforms in high to extreme hazards areas, an interim TLP| approach is recommended.

17 RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that Council resolves as follows:

1 That the report be deemed non-confidential except for those paris deerned by the
Chief Executive Officer to remain confidential in accordance with section 171 (3)
and 200 (5) of the Local Government Act 2009.

2 To endorse the proposed minimum flood free land policy as identified in
Attachment 1 to inform updates to the Flood overlay ccde as part of Major
update 2 package.

3 That the Mayoral Technical Advisory Committee be corisulted on the proposed
content prior to progressing to State interest review.

4 Following review by the Mayoral Technical Advisory Committee, the Chief
Executive Officer be authorised to make any admirnistrative and consequential
amendments prior to progressing to State’interest review.

5. To prepare a Temporary Local Planning Instrument to implement minimum flood
free land and return a TLPI package for enitlorszrnent before making a
submission to the Minister for Planning.

Author: Authorised by:
Hamid Mirfenderesk Dyan Currie
Coordinator Natural Hazards Team Director Planning and Environment
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Changed recommendation

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION CP17.1011.008
moved Cr Caldwell seconded Cr Gates

1 That the report be deemed non-confidential except for those parts deemed by the Chief
Executive Officer to remain confidential in accordance with section 171 (3) and 280 (5) of
the Local Government Act 2009.

2 To endorse the proposed minimum flood free land policy as ideniified ic inform updates
to the Flood overlay code as part of Major update 2 package.

3 To prepare a Temporary Local Planning Instrument to implement-mininium flood free
land and return a TLPI package for endorsement before miaking a subinission to the
Minister for Planning.

CARRIED
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Attachment 1 - REDACTED
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Suite 5 Level 2 Homemaler City
Cnr Gympie & Zillmere Roads Aspley

PO Box 842 Aspiey Qld 4034
P 3263 4577 -F 3263 4566
office@oxmarproperties:com.au

WWW.CKINarproperties,.com.au

Friday 22nd December 2017

Hon Cameron Dick MP

Minister for State Development, Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Rlanning
PO Box 15009

CITY EAST QLD 4002

Dear Minister

Re: City of Gold Coast Temporary Local Planning instrument No. 5 (Minimum Land Above
Designated Flood Level and Residential Risk Reduction) 2017

Submission Objecting to the Proposed Introduction of this Instrument

Reference is made to the City of Gold Coast’s recent introduction of the Temporary Local Planning
Instrument No. 5 (Minimum Land Above Designated Flood Level and Residential Risk Reduction)
2017 (from herein, the TLPI), which was formally released to the public on Friday 8 December
2017.

We thank you for the opportunity to present a submission objecting to the contents of this TLPI.

By way of background, Oxmar Properties is a highly-credentialled property developer with over 30
years of experience delivering a range of projects across Queensland. For further information on
our company, please feelfree tovisit the website, www.oxmarproperlies.com.au/about-us/

We have recently acquired & site situated on the southern side of the Link Way at Mudgeeraba,
which consists Lot 42 on-SP184241, Lot 30 on SP270379, Lot 24 on SP868214 and Lot 25 on
SP270379. The development site measures 60.44ha in size and is proposed to be improved
through the construction of 1776 residential units and other residential accommodation facilities,
which has a value of over $350 million intended to be invested into the local development and
construction seciors.

After extensive review of the contents of this TLPI, we are gravely concerned that the proposed
réguiatory controls for development projects within the floodplain will have an extremely adverse
effect on—-the development prospects of this site, in addition to a range of other investment
oppertunities that we are presently considering across the City.
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Specifically focusing on the Link Way Project, the following details the extensive work that we-have
undertaken to date to assure that the project satisfies our Company’s pledge, being “to-develop
consistently high quality residential environments, which enhance the lives of the peaple who live
there and the community as a whole”;

i

o~

Oxmar Properties have engaged extensively with Gold Coast City Council (GECC) regarding
the nature and style of development suitable for the site and to meet residential demands
clearly expressed by the community.

Oxmar Properties have facilitated a number of pre-lodgement meeiings with GCCC Officers
and affected Local Area Councillors to discuss the Project.

Oxmar Properties have engaged a team of specialist technical consultants and are expected
to be in a position to lodge a formal Development Application with the GCCC in January
2018. We have expended several hundred thousand dotllars to dale to get to this point.

In selecting their consulting team for the Project, Oxmar Properties engaged Burchills
Engineering Solutions as their technical engineering services firm, whom have several
decades of specialist experience working on developtnent and planning in the floodplains
across the City. Burchills has undertaken best practice Flood Emergency Management
planning and design that has been the cornerstone of the iterative development of the
Project's overall proposal scheme.

Oxmar Properties notes that construction of the Project will both enhance the local
environment and will reduce the flood impacts on adjacent GCCC community infrastructure.
Further, the proposed upgrade to Link Way will provide flood free access to the shopping
centre for new residents and the breader community.

In summary, Oxmar Properties wishes tc emphasise that the regulations contained within the TLPI
would render approximately half of the likely development yield from the Link Way Project as not
being achievable. This would resultin a significant negative economic impact being felt on the local
construction industry, whilst also exacerbating population growth and housing affordability issues
being felt across the City.

Oxmar Properties' prirnary concerns brought about by the introduction of the TLPI relates to the
process by which it has been introduced, specifically:

Overall, thelack of corisultation with industry stakeholders and affected parties regarding the
contents’and the release of the TLPI is of concern.

No independent engineering or planning assessment appears to have been undertaken, with
several potential unintended consequences of the TLPI being observed.

The lack of transition period created by the introduction of the TLPI prejudices developers
with significant financial exposure in current and pending development applications.

No-guidance on the application of the TLPI has been provided, which results in uncertainty
surrounding how the instrument affects development projects across the floodplain.

Council's information briefing (provided with only 24 hours’ notice) was unclear in its
guidance when numerous typical example development cases were discussed.
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o There remains questions as to whether the State Government’s 0.8m sea level rise figure
has been used to support the introduction of the TLPI. This is a separate issue whicihwill be
addressed via updated flood mapping, which is yet to be released by Council.

Oxmar Properties firmly believe that the State Government, working with Councit, shouid-seek to
establish a collaborative working group including government and industry stakeholders to
advance discussions around how flood-resilient development should be sustainabiy located and
designed across the City.

We kindly request that this submission is read in conjunction with other objections that have been
presented from other industry stakeholders, including those from Burchills Engineering Solutions,
whom we have engaged as our engineering consulting services firm for the Link Way Project. Their
submission was issued on Tuesday, 19 December 2017.

We look forward to working in collaboration with government and industry stakeholders to advance
discussions around how flood-resilient development should be sustainably located and designed
across the City.

Should you have any queries or require any additional information relating to the above, please do

Yours faithfully

aging Director

cc: Kim Kirstein
Manager Planning & Deveiopinent Services — SEQ South
Department of Irifrasiructure;Local Government and Planning
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Tuesday, 19 December 2017

Hon Cameron Dick MP

Minister for State Development, Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planriing
PO Box 15009

CITY EAST QLD 4002

Dear Minister

Re: City of Gold Coast Temporary Local Planning Instrument No. 5
(Minimum Land Above Designated Flood Lzavel and Residential Risk Reduction) 2017

Submission Objecting to the Proposed Introruction of this Instrument

Reference is made to the City of Gold Coast’s recent intieduction of the Temporary Local Planning
Instrument No. 5 (Minimum Land Above Dasigriated F-lood Level and Residential Risk Reduction)
2017 (from herein, the TLPI), which was formaiiy released to the public on Friday 8 December 2017.

We thank you for the opportunity to present-a submission objecting to the contents of this Instrument.

After extensive review of the contents of this TLPI, we are gravely concerned that the proposed
regulatory controls for developrnent piojecis within the floodplain will have an extremely adverse
effect on the development and caristruction sectors across the City.

For example, we are confident that the TLPI's envisaged policy shift will render a range of pending
projects as being unachievabia. A selection of these key projects includes:

Project ' Address Land Size Development Yield
67 Macadie~ Way, |67 Macadie Way, | 3.6ha 56 Residential Units & 74 Town
Merrimac Merrimac House Dwellings
The Italo Club | 18 Fairway Drive, | 3.86ha 94 Residential Units
Retirement Village Clear Island Waters
Parkwood Golf Course | 76-122 Napper Rd, | 56.49ha 260 room Retirement Facility.
Parkwood (Total lot
area)
The Link Way, | lot 42 on SP184241, | 60.44ha 928 Units and 339 Townhouses
Mudgeeraba lot 30 on SP270379,

R www.burchills.com.au

Page 1
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Project ~ Address Land Size Development Yield

lot 24 on 868214 and 3
lot 25 on SP270379

Green Heart Gardens 163 Gooding Drive, | 75.95ha 5,000 multi-residentia! units
Merrimac and 8,000m? “of _commercial

floor space
Robina Transit (Palmer | 57 Paradise Springs | 70ha 2,500 residential units
Colonial) Avenue, Robina

As can be seen from the scale of the abovementioned projects, extensive ecoriomic impacts on the
construction industry will be felt if they do not proceed. Furthermiore, population growth targets for
the City of Gold Coast will become harder to realise, thus further accentuating housing affordability

issues.

Table 1 has been prepared below, which provides a technica! review of the perceived issues that
appear to have guided the development of the Temporary Locai Planning Instrument No. 5 (Minimum
Land Above Designated Flood Level and Residential Risk Reduction) 2017. As you will read in our
review, we firmly believe that resilient developivient/in the floodplain is achievable, subject to
adherence with suitable development controls.

Page 2
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Table 1 — Technical Review of Perceived Issues associated with Development in Flood Affected Areas

Perceived Issues

Discussion

Burchills’ Feedback

(a) Increasein
development
footprint in
flood affected
areas

The expansion of the

development footprint |

across the
floodplains
on the

city’s

absorption

capacity  of  the |

floodplain; waterways
and environment; and
the adaptive capacity

of floodplains |

responding fo future
changes.

impacts |

The proposed TLPI affects existing developed areas that experience flood event depths exceeding
0.6m and velocities exceeding 0.8m/s. This includes many suburbs that-are earmarked for higher
density “missing middle” redevelopment including many along the Light Rail corridor. Suburbs such
as Budd’s Beach, Chevron Island, Paradise Island, Carrara {namely the localities near Monaco St
and Nerang Broadbeach Rd), Mermaid Beach, Miami, Burleigh-are heaviiy impacted by this
proposed regulatory shift.

The proposed TLPI fails to appreciate that new proposals for development within the floodplain are
required to prepare rigorous Flood Emergency Management Plans (FEMP), with the activation of
these Plans during flood events often resulting in these developments having very little to no impact
on emergency services resources: ! fact, these contemporary development proposals in the
floodplain may in fact contribuie to reducing risks in neighbouring flood prone areas.

The proposed Acceptabie Cutcome AQ17.1 to PO17 from the TLPI may have an unintended
consequence upon rural residential subdivisions, requiring 400m? or 50% of the site area
(whichever is greater) to be at or above the Defined Flood Level for ‘Residential’ uses. Previous
Rural Residential subdivisions required the provision of a 1,000m? building envelope to be provided
at or above the CFL This proposed Acceptable Outcome will require further refinement so that it
does not affect specific zones.

The proposed TLPI is based purely upon only two (2) independent hydraulic variables (depth and
velocity). It has become best practice both nationally and internationally to categorise flood
hydrauiic hazard based upon the velocity x depth product, of which is omitted from the instrument.
Reference is made below to the NSW Floodplain Development Manual figures that outline a
sensible approach that all NSW Councils (and several Councils in other states) have adopted for
assessing hazardous conditions:

www.burchills.com.a
I y Page 3
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Council's current approach to hazard categorisation requires expert industry review and
engagement. A peak flood depth of say 0.65m and velocity at that peak of <0.5m/s (typical of most
of the lower Gold Coast floodplain) many experts would argue is not high hazard. Imposing such a
constraint across the City’s vast floodplain would unnecessarily sterilise development and force
developers to assess their options in other local government authorities that have taken a more
holistic approach to assessing applications in the floodplain (like Tweed Shire Council for example).
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Perceived Issues
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° Determining hazard needs to include other factors in addition to just depth and velocity. For any
development application that has a proposed footprint within a ‘high hazard’ zone, whether the flow
is being transferred over the design surface or underneath a platform, a proper risk assessment
needs to be undertaken in conjunction with a Multi Criteria Analysis and Cost Benefit Assessment
to ensure that a rigorous decision is made based on a range of factors and not just independent
velocity and depth variables.

e Flood mitigation measures (structural and non-structural) once 2ssessed needs to be viewed in line
with “what is the residual risk?" question and can the residual risk be adequately managed. A Flood
Emergency Management Plan (FEMP) can greatly assist inreducing the risk such that the high
hazard can be managed, as well as having a ‘state of theart’ flood warning and forecasting system
in place. Developers that are seeking a development proposal within high flood hazard zones
should commit to undertaking watei level floed gauging at the sites upstream and downstream
extents to confirm the actual flcod mechanics that forms part of the hazard categorisation.

Summarising Comments

Burchills submits that thie introductiori of a TLPI in this circumstance is not warranted. Any planning
instrument shotld be informed and considered for implementation on after Council has developed a
detailed hydiaulic.and !and use master plan for the City’s floodplains. The hydraulic and land use master
plan can ther pe used o guide what is and is not possible on a particular site, subject to a site-specific
hydraulic assessrieit being prepared to support a development proposal.

Furthermore, odr view is that based on the above feedback, a potential alternative policy approach would
ve to protect major flow paths and to allow controlled podium development in backwater/storage areas.

(b) Asset renewal

Similar _to
| assets, platforms

have a design life and
{'will\ \need fo be
|\renewed over a 50 or
70 year cycle
resulting in

° Podiums and platforms are designed and constructed to have an equivalent design life as any
other type of built form, therefore this perceived lifecycle issue does not appear to relevant.

° Podiums and platform structures are designed by experienced and qualified engineers certified by
the State Government under the Board of Professional Engineers.

° The costs associated with maintenance and replacement obligations are borne by the property
owner/s and are not borne by the community.

www.burchills.com.au
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substantial costs to
the community.

Summarising Comments

Burchills submits that the technical query regarding the design life of platform and poedium assets has no
technical basis and should therefore be rejected.

(c) Safety

Building on platform
provides  habitable
floors that are
normally only a few
metres above ground
level with potential of
full inundation of land
under the building
even during minor
floods

The Gold Coast floodplains are flooded by slow rising, longer duration evernits that provide ample
warning time for people to move or evacuate and for moveable properiy to be relocated or moved
to higher ground. Furthermore, platform and podiuin developments are designed to ensure that the
structural integrity of the structure is maintained during flood eveiits. Accordingly, we are unable to
understand what risks humans are being exposed to by flood inundation under buildings.

Development with flood free access and evacuation reutes — If fenced balconies overhang flood
water, what is the safety issue?

Development proposals in mediuri fiood hazard areas under the current planning requirements are
required to be supported by a compretieisive Flood Emergency Management Plan which
addresses matters such as refuge 2ieas above flood, maintaining continuous power supply, water,
food supply, medical needs, fire, communications evacuation, and security. Under the new
planning-instrument develcpment will be allowed in flood affected areas that do not require these
manadgement measures to be considered.

Refuge in place provisions apply to new development where residents’ access and egress can be
cut-off by flocdwaters, generally providing refuge areas above probable maximum flood (PMF)
level.

High-rise balconies pose a greater risk to life from falls onto hard surfaces?

There is greater potential for scour to occur on unprotected properties (higher in the catchment)
exposed to high velocity flows in close proximity to creek / river channels than podium

developments set on floodplains (generally low velocity environments) during extreme weather
events.

4

www.burchills.com.au

Page 6

RTIP1718-047 - Part 4 Page Number 90




The experience

4

Perceived Issues

Discussion

Burchills’ Feedback

Summarising Comments

Burchills submits that based on the particular characteristics of flood events across the Gold Coast, that
residents often receive extended warning periods to enable them to pack up and retreat to higher ground.
Notwithstanding, the specific design criteria for developments within the floedplain; including the need to
adhere to the requirements of Flood Emergency Management Plans, results in such projects being safe
and resilient in cases of flood.

(d) Compliance
ramifications

The use of building on
platform requires that
the area under the
building will be
maintained to function
as floodplain storage
and/or overland flow
path (i.e. cannot be
built in). Once built,
this critical aspect will
be difficult to verify to
ensure the
development is
complying with the
conditions of
approval.

e [tis acknowledged that some developments may not maintain undercroft areas correctly, although it
must be noted that non-compliance with development approval conditions is an issue that is
confronted by Council with any development project.

e Council already operates a canal maintenance team whicti provides surveillance of unlawful land uses
and construction activities. It is expected that such a team will be able to expand their reach to also
regularly examine compliance of develosment projects within the floodplain.

Summarising Comments

Burchills submits that compliance ramifications are a potential issue needing to be managed, as they are
with any development proiect. In-crder to remedy this perceived issue, Council may require via conditions
of approval that developers prepare and submit annual reports demonstrating compliance with
requirements reizting to maintenance of these undercroft areas.

(e) Potential
environmental
health
impacts

Increased ponding of
water and.  potential
environmental” health:
impacts. Based on the
Guraganbah master
plan vision, ponding
of water would occur
on the floodplain at a

e Cocmpared to often unkempt nature of pre-development floodplains, we would expect less ponding

and fewer potential health concerns arising from development projects being carried out in the
floodplain.

e The TLPI would allow podiums only up to 0.6m above the ground, which renders the ability to access
and maintain these sites to be difficult and potentially dangerous.

www.burchills.com.au
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safe distance from | e The issues that have been raised can be addressed by the preparation and implementation of an
buildings and not Undercroft Management Plan and a Groundwater Management Plan. Burchills-has worked on several
directly —under the such Plans and are happy to present examples if sought.
residential buildings.

Summarising Comments

Burchills submits that a development project within the floodplain that is well-located, designed and
managed will promote a style of development that reduces potentiai environmental health impacts on the
surrounding ecosystem and on residents of the area.

Through the preparation and implementation of technical reports such as Undercroft Management Plans
and Groundwater Management Plans, an extensive range cf eivironmental information is obtained which
results in tailored mitigatory measures being employed for the life of the project.

Other Issues for Discussion

() Land Use * Areas being developed in/the floadplain-are typically close to existing infrastructure and represent
efficient infill development ogportunities.

e The majority of the subject siies seeking to be developed in the floodplain are generally privately-
owned, 2ie-of low vziue and offer minimal use prospects.

e Develocpmerit-of such prospects offers Council the opportunity to collect headworks charges and
ongoing paymeriis of rates from new residents.

¢ Development of such prospects offers the opportunity to levy contributions to contribute to the
proposed Green Heart open space initiative along with other Council initiatives in the future.

e As part of the preparation of the TLPI, we are unsure as to whether visual amenity considerations are
| applicable. If so, examples of particular attributes of examined projects should be nominated and
presented to the industry for broader examination.

e The introduction of the TLPI may be seen as a strategic approach to Council seeking to acquire the

land within the floodplain. If this is the case, this approach needs to be presented and discussed in
further detail with affected stakeholders.

.i\
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e Council policy relating to floodplain management and flood emergency management is flawed and the
industry and community needs to be consulted to form a holistic masterplan that all parties are.in
agreement with.

' Summarising Comments
| Burchills submits that Council should embark upon the development of a holistic niasterplan relating to

development projects in the floodplain. Such a project shouid be driven by a collaborative working group
that includes government and industry stakeholders, with(its initial piece of work being to examine and
assess the various perceived issues detailed within this document!

(g) Process

e Qverall, the lack of consultation with industry stakeholders-and affected parties regarding the contents
and the release of the TLPI is of corcern.

e No independent engineering or planning assessment appears to have been undertaken, with several
potential unintended conseguences of the TLPI being observed.

e The lack of transition period created by the introduction of the TLPI prejudices developers with
significant financia! exposure in cuitent and pending development applications.

¢ No guidance-on the application of the TLPI has been provided, which results in uncertainty
surrouriding how the instrument affects development projects across the floodplain.

o Council's informaticin briefing (provided with only 24 hours’ notice) was unclear in its guidance when
numerous typical example development cases were discussed.

»_ Questiciis remain as to whether the State Government’'s 0.8m sea level rise figure has been used to
support the introduction of the TLPI. This is a separate issue which will be addressed via updated
flood mapping, which is yet to be released by Council.

Summarising Comments

Burchills submits that the process by which the TLPI has been prepared and introduced into the public
sphere has not enabled the forms of rigorous discussion required to better understand the rationale
behind its implementation and to better investigate the true implications of it becoming Council policy.

www.burchills.com.au
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We firmly believe that the State Government, working with Council, should seek to estaklish a
collaborative working group including government and industry stakeholders to advance discussions
around how flood-resilient development should be sustainably located and designed across the City.

www.burchills.com.au
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We kindly request the opportunity to meet with yourself and stakeholders from SARA 4rd the
Queensland State Government to discuss the abovementioned information in further detail.

Further, we look forward to working in collaboration with government and industry stakehoiders to
advance discussions around how flood-resilient development should be sustainably lccated and
designed across the City.

Should you have any queries or require any additional information relating to the above; please do

not hesitate to contact_ or via mobile./“

Yours faithfully

cc:  Kim Kirstein
Manager Planning & Development Services — SEQ South
Department of Infrastructure, Local Government and Planning

www.burchills.com.au
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Our Ref: 17139 z zon(&

Planning Group

22 December 2017 GOLD COAST | GLADSTONE
p 07 5562 2303

The Hon Cameron Dick MP info@zoneplanning.comi.au

Minister for State Development, Manufacturing, zonepianning.com.au
Infrastructure and Planning ABN 35 607 362 238

Unit 1, 80 Wembley Road

Woodridge Qld 4114

Dear Sir

CITY OF GOLD COAST TEMPORARY LOCAL PLANNING INSTRUMENT (TLPI) NO. 5 MINIMUM LAND
ABOVE DESIGNATED FLOOD LEVEL AND RESIDENTIAL RISK RECUCTION) 2017

We write to you as an industry stakeholder and on behalf of our ciient, Myall Group, regarding City of
Gold Coast’s recent TLPI No 5 which it is understood is currently with your office for your endorsement.

Firstly, we would like to make it very clear that we do ' not/suppert development occurring in locations
which place undue risk to persons and/or property. We dlso understand that the recent litigation cases
occurring in relation to the Brisbane 2011 are fresh on everyeng’s mind.

However, we have concerns in regard to the progosed TLPI No 5 in that trying to achieve a certain
outcome, decisions are being made in haste of whichtiave had little (if any) peer review, or consultation
with key external stakeholders, experts inthe area of flooding and natural hazard risk management, or
industry in general.

The purpose of the TLPI is to, “..prevent the patential loss of the City’s flood resilience and enable the
sustainable mitigation of flood hazard on land included on City Plan’s Flood overlay map. The provision
seeks to strengthen Council’s commitment to ensure development in flood affected areas is safe and
resilient” with proposed amendments to the Flood Overlay Code to ensure:

a. Residential uses dre only exposed to medium or less flood hazard; and
b. ROL’s provide sufficient lond at or above the Designated Flood Level.

(Source: http://www.goldcoacst.qld.gov.au/planning-and-building/temporary-local-planning-instrument-no-5-
2017-43294.html)

Additionally, the amzndments seek to “..discourage the proliferation of Residential Uses constructed on
platforms above Fload Affected Land”.

This provision is-clear in its intent that podium development does not occur in the City. However, no peer
reviewed technical data has been made available to support that this type of development (construction
method)-is-ineffective or that it creates a danger to persons or property in a severe weather event. In
fact, local based hydraulic modelling data indicates otherwise and this type of development is supported
by structural engineers and qualified natural hazard risk management experts.

1638 Tweed Street, Burleigh Heads QLD | PO Box 3805, Burleigh Town QLD 4220 1
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Additionally, this type of development is considered a more sustainable construction method compared
to traditional cut and fill processes (of which Council officers have confirmed they are supportive of) due
to their limited impact on the environment — being piers/columns verses substantial earthworks and
recontouring of the natural environment.

Furthermore, in seeking to introduce the term ‘flood resilience’ in to the TLPI, Council has offerad no
explanation as to what this means and how it can be achieved. The term resilience is a broadly used term
and varies across different contexts; however, it is mostly referred to the ability to bounce back oriacover
from a significant event and / or the ability to adapt to different situations. In the centext of disaster
management, flood resilience can be explained as reducing the devastating impacts of floods before a
flood event occurs. In the case of podium development, this type of development seeks to do just this —
despite the TLPI seeking to “..discourage the proliferation of Residential Uses constriicted on platforms
above Flood Affected Land”.

Should the proposed TLPI be endorsed in its current form, Myall Group, as aiccal developer with
international investment ties, will be directly affected by these changes. Myall Group lodged a
development application into Council on 27 November 2017 with no knowledge of the impending release
of the TLPI. In this specific situation, a prelodgement meeting was held with Council officers in August
2017 prior to lodging the development application; of which officers were supportive of the proposed
podium residential development (which adjoins a Court approver podium residential development),
giving Myall Group confidence to move forward with the developrnent.

At the specific request of Council’s Hydraulic officers, substantial flood modelling was ‘required’ to be
undertaken and Council’s Prelodgement Meeting. Minutes did not indicate that the proposed
development format was unacceptable. That is, there was no/iridication that a podium format would be
unsupported by Council providing visual amenity/and technical aspects could be achieved, including flood
mitigation to a 500 year ARI flood event. As local fiood data was not available from Council in relation to
the subject site, detailed flood modelling was undertakeri at considerable cost to Myall Group to ensure
the development was technically sound —of which the hydraulic modelling data confirmed to be the case.
In regard to the visual amenity, landscape hufters the full perimeter of the podium were proposed as
requested by officers.

Discussion with Council officers, ©hoth withinthe Council’s policy and development assessment sections,
indicate that they are not prepared in dealing with the TLPl and are unable to provide any advice in regard
to applications currently being assessed through the development assessment process. Furthermore, the
hundreds of thousands of dellars invested in the preparation of expert reports in support of the
development (some ‘reguired’ hy Council officers), along with tens of thousands of dollars in Council
application fees should also'be considered.

Again, we are notsupporting inappropriate development in unsafe locations, podium development has
g g

proven to be a structurally and technically sound construction method in areas of inundation over many
years, both locally and iinteinationally.

It is respectfully requested that due consideration be given to the facts and peer reviewed technical
evidence be sought prior to making a decision in regard to TLPI No 5.

Additionally, consideration is also requested in regard to the substantial investment that has been made
by developers in preparing their development applications and expeit reports for Council’s assessment,
with no prior knowledge or consultation in regard to Council’s proposed TLPI No 5.

1638 Tweed Street, Burleigh Heads QLD | PO Box 3805, Burleigh Town QLD 4220 2
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on We look forward to receiving your response to the items raised in this correspondence at

your earliest convenience.

Should iou have any queries concerning the above please contact myself‘or_of this office

Yours sincerely

ZONE PLANNING GROUP

CG
{5 Kim Kirstein
Manager, Gold Coast SARA
South East Queensland (South)
Department of
PO Box 3290
Australia Fair
Southport Qld 4215
Email: GCSARA@dilgp.gld.gov.au

2. Amanda Tzannes
Manager, City Planning
City of Gold Coast
PO Box 5042
GCMC QLD 9729
Email: atzannes@goldcoast.qld.gov.av / mail@goldcoast.qld.gov.au

1638 Tweed Street, Burleigh Heads QLD | PO Box 3805, Burleigh Town QLD 4220 3
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20 December 2017

Mr Dale Dickson GP) 80k 2279
Brisbane QLD 4001

Leve! 12, 120 Edward Street

Chief Executive Officer Rrisoane QLD 4000
City of Gold Coast T:-07 3229 1589
F: 07 3229 7857
PO Box 5042 o
GOLD COAST MC g729 AN OA00T 084
ABN 32885 108 968

BY POST / EMAIL - ddickson@goldcoast.qld.gov.au

Dear Mr Dickson,

Proposed Temporary Local Planning Instrument No. 5
(Minimum Land Above Designated Flood Level and Residential Risk Reduction) zoa7

We note from the City of Gold Coast (City) Planning and Davelopment Alert dated 8 December that
the City has resolved to prepare and endorse a Temparaiy Local Planning Instrument No.5
(Minimum Land Above Designated Flood Leveland Residantial Risk Reduction) 2027 (TLPI). We
also note that Council has asked the Minister to approve backdated commencement of the TLPI
from 8 December.

The Urban Development Institute of Australia (the institute) has concerns regarding the detail and
development of the TLPI, which are detaiied beiow.

However, before detailing these concerns, we would like to take this opportunity as we come to the
end of 2017 to express our thanksfor Council’s contribution to the productive working relationship
that has existed between the lastitute’s Gold Coast Logan Branch and the Council throughout 2017.
The year has been a successful yearfor the Institute and Gold Coast with a high number of
development applications lodged and finalised by Council and progress on many policy issues. We
look forward to continuing this relationship into 2018.

As you are aware, the institute is a/national not-for-profit organisation representing the property
development industry arid the Queensland office is the |largest of the state bodies. The role of the
Institute is to assist cur membars to deliver jobs, diverse housing, and thriving communities. In this
context, we mustindicate serious concerns of the industry with the TLPI. On the basis of the
concerns outlined belew, the Institute recommends the TLPI be withdrawn and that informational
and other issues bé resolved with industry.

The’key cancerns regarding the proposed TLPI are:

e Inadequate consultation has occurred with the industry

° The need for a TLPI has not been provided or satisfactorily justified

° The TLPlis not properly framed in that its provisions do not accord with its object and
the definition of flood resilience is unclear

o The TLPI excludes cut and fill and podium style development in flood affected areas
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o The impacts on supply of a diversity of housing and achievement of SEQ regional plar
housing supply expectations

° Negative effect on the value of many land holdings and owners’ financial situation if the
TLPI is applied including potential loss of rights to compensation

° The TLPI has a range of unintended effects citywide (such as to redevelopment in
existing areas)

e The unclear extent of external technical or professional engineering advice obtained
during the preparation of the TLPI

° The issuing of the TLPI prior to the City Plan Major Update does not accurately portray
the impact of the TLPI changes

° Issues with the City Plan Major Update that affect the TLPIl impacts remain unresolved.

Regarding the recent City Plan Major Update, the Institute provided a submission and imaterial
which identified serious concerns with the included flood modelling, specificaily:

° Inadequate information including:

o Material for professionals to review the assumptions of the imsdelling

o The basis for both the 10% increase in rainfall irtensity and adoption of 50% of total
wave setup at the mouth of the Tallebudgera and Currumbin Creeks
Whether November 2016 revision of Australian Rainfali'znd Runoff was considered

o
o Inclusion of the flood mitigation benefits of Hinze Dam Stage 3
o The reason for the use of 2100 as the year for the 8ocm sea level increase
o The lack of detail on any peer review of materials that may have been undertaken
o Indication of the designated flood level
o Identification of areas that are likeiy affected by the designated flood level
o Identification of areas that are likely to be greater than 0.6 metres in depth to the

designated flood level.

° Inadequate consideration of the effects of the Hinze Dam stage 3 project on flood

levels.

Further information and recommendaticns on these points are provided below.

Inadequate consultation

The TLPI has appeared without prior notice in the industry’s busiest season. No consultation period
was included in the notice on 8 December and the proposals indicate a very substantial change that
will have very substantial impacts upon existing and intended projects.

While TLPIs do not raguire consvitation, we consider this creates a greater moral obligation that
they are only rarely, justifiably used. The Institute is not aware of any issue that justifies a departure
from standard carisultation réquirements regarding planning scheme amendments nor any
emergency or new evidence of serious risk of harm to persons or property from flooding that
warrants this change.

We also nate that the recent planning scheme amendment, City Plan Major Update, proposed
significant changes to Council flood mapping. The Institute flagged in its submission on 15
Noveimber a number of concerns and questions. To date, we have not received clarification on those
issuzs that are relevant to this TLPI. Adequate consultation regarding the City Plan Major Update
Fias not yet occurred to resolve its inherent issues. The TLP! is relevant to that work and compounds
ouicencerns that consultation has been insufficient.

The Institute recommends that, at the least, the assumptions and modelling that have resulted in
the TLPI proposals should be subject to an independent technical review. The Institute would, of
course, cooperatively involve itself in any review of material.

2|Page
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Inadequate information

The Institute, in its submission on 15 November regarding the City Plan Major Update scheme
amendment, indicated concerns with:

e Lackof transparency of the material available and the lack of supporting and background
information

¢ Inadequate material for professionals to review the assumptions that underpin the flood
modelling

e The basis for both the 10% increase in rainfall intensity and adoption of 50% of tetal wave
setup at the mouth of the Tallebudgera and Currumbin Creeks

e  Whether November 2016 revision of Australian Rainfall and Runoff was considerad in the
material

®  The non-inclusion of the flood mitigation benefits of Hinze Dam 5tage 3 te preserve and
improve the City’s flood resilience

e Use of 2100 as the year for the Bocm sea level increase

e The lack of any detail on any peer review of materials that inay have been undertaken.

The draft City Plan Major Update planning scheme included flood levels that resulted in sites being
indicated as liable to flooding that previously were not. We note that Council has removed this
information from the interactive website mapping. This is a significant concern for the industry as it
seeks to ensure development is well based and raises duty of care concerns.

The flood modelling issues of the previous City Plan Major Update remain outstanding. The
Institute recommends that these issues be resolved prior to progress of the TLPI as they affect
understanding of the impact of the TLPI and inde&d'its riecessity. The Institute recommends that
the TLPI is paused and relevant information distributed‘with'a'view to achieving greater agreement
on the assumptions. This would underpin a robust and mare widely accepted action on flood
resilience for the region. The Institute considers the foilowing additional critical information on
flood modelling should be made available for review:

e Indication of the new defined Q100 fevel
e Updated defined Qo0 flood levei mapping
e Mapping of areas that wod!d be deeper than 0.6 metres under the new level.

In addition to the underlying fload modelling information, the Institute seeks further information
that is critical to enable understanding of the impact of the TLPI changes.

A statement was made by officers at thé information session on 14 December that less than 2,500
properties in total are expected to beaffected by the changes. However, it is clear to the Institute
that the affect would mriost likely be'more significant if the new flood levels are imposed as per the
recent City Plan Major Update.,

Our view on the avaiiabla information is that it is likely the TLPI will affect most sites in the
Gurangunbahtlood Plan, Mudgeeraba, Currumbin Creek, Tallebudgera Creek, Coomera River, and
other areas that are subject to flooding. Also, the TLPI specifically lacks adequate information to
clarify that some existing development approaches are permitted (further information on this is
provided in the nextsection). The lack of resolved information is a critical shortcoming of the TLPI.

TLPi provisions and technical issues

The Institute is concerned that the TLPI would remove the ability to continue cut and fill and
podium style development in flood affected areas. This type of development has been accepted on
the Gold Coast for at least a decade, with cutting and filling in the flood plain facilitating an increase
inthe area of flood free land, whilst maintaining flood storage. Also, in recent times, podiums have
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been built above the flood level (not impacting flood storage) to allow for apartments and/or
townhouses.

Podium style development places dwellings completely above flood level, often with access that is
maintained in a flood event. We also note that in some cases there are ‘remain in place’ facilities
that provide refuge whilst the flood passes. Members advise that in the Cyclone Debbie ficads
earlier this year, the latest podium style developments maintained safety, as well as power; water,
sewerage, and access.

Podium style developments have been conceived and certified by Registered Professicnal
Engineers who are registered by the Board of Professional Engineers Queensland. The standards to
which these designs and certifications are undertaken are some of the most/s¢ringent in existence.

Council Officers have indicated that cut and fill and podiums may still be permittad under the TLPI.
However, the TLPI is strongly worded and leads to the conclusion that this deveicpnient would not
be supported. Performance Outcome (PO) 16 of the TLPI is clearly against development in areas
with a flood inundation depth exceeding 0.6 metres and has no Acceptable Quicomes (AO). The
Institute recommends the TLPI be redrafted to clearly provide forongoing cut and fill and podium
development approaches.

TLPI object and definition issues

We note the City has used the term ‘flood resilience’ in the TLF1 and elsewhere, and that this is a
foundation term for the TLPI. The Institute considers that this term should be better defined as, at
present, there is uncertainty regarding this term.

Also, the statement included in the TLPI, ‘The abject of the temporary local planning instrument is to
prevent the potential loss of the city’s flood resilience and enable the sustainable mitigation of flood
hazard on land in flood affected areas...’is censidered at odds with the TLPI controls. Current
scheme provisions do not permit impact on fiood resilience and mitigation of flood hazard, and the
proposed detailed changes will only have the impact of reducing development activity and the
number of residential lots that may be created. Additional consequences could include devaluing
property and impacting flood free area periots. The Institute recommends the TLPI be reviewed to
clarify the purpose and effects of the document.

Impact of changes to Hinze Dam stage 3

The draft City Plan Majer Update indicated flood levels without adequately accounting for the flood
retention effects of the Hinze Dam stage 3 project. This is a major omission that undermines the
City Plan Major Updateand the'need for or area of impact of the TLPI.

The Institute recommends thie TLPI be withdrawn until peer reviewed consideration is given to the
appropriate iole of effects of the Hinze Dam stage 3 project on flood levels.

Consequences for the Planning Scheme

The TLP!would prevent infill development within existing urban areas of the Gold Coast. In
particular; our members have identified areas such as Paradise Point, Mermaid Beach, Palm Beach,
and Burleigh Waters where many existing houses are affected by a water depth of greater than
0.6m. When combined with the updated flood levels in the City Plan Major Update, substantial
areas of these redevelopment locations will be precluded from redevelopment.

4|Page
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These sites were often developed by either a small cut and fill operation or a suspended floor above
the flood plain. A suspended floor lifting the house above the flood level is a Queensland staple zrd
has been an acceptable outcome for nearly a century.

The TLPI will substantially impact otherwise developable properties and will significantly reduce
potential additional dwelling supply in the City. This could have critical impacts on diversity of
housing options and housing supply in some locations as many City lot development and key: infill
locations are subject to flooding. A serious reduction of housing supply would exacerbate already
concerning affordability levels in the region.

It is also expected the TLPI may impact achievement of SEQ regional plan housing suppiy
expectations, particularly for consolidating development, in the region. We note infill makes up a
very large proportion of the SEQ Regional Plan and City Plan’s housing supply irtentionfor the Gold
Coast. It appears that the TLPI is premature and needs to be reviewed in termis of its effact on
housing development. The Institute recommends the City give further consideration to the housing
supply impacts of the TLPI, particularly the significant population growth demands being made on
the region.

Compensation

The TLPI has substantial implications for the value of many land holdings and their owners’ financial
situations as it is not an adverse planning change for which compgnsation is payable. This would not
be the case in a such a sudden and irrevocable manner if the changes were included in an ordinary
planning scheme amendment. The Institute considers it is inappropriate to seek removal of
compensation rights without well resolved backgrotnd information. Also, if proposed, the
community should well understand the need for suctrariaction. The Planning Act in Section 23
(7)(b) indicates that a TLPI is not an adverse pianning schewie change that would otherwise trigger
rights for compensation by affected land ownars:

23 Making or amending TLPIs
(7) A TLPI—
(a) does notcreate asuperseded planning scheme; and
(b) is notan adverse planning change.

The Institute considers that the TLPishouid not be approved in its present form as it can have
severe impacts on land holders without adequate justification. The Institute does not consider there
is sufficient available eviderice that there is significant risk of serious adverse environmental or
other conditions that require this urgent action.

The Institute considars that the TLPI planning scheme policy changes are preemptive and poorly
based. The changes sho4ld not proceed without resolution of the issues raised in the Institute’s
submission to the City Pian Major Update or the issues raised in this submission.

Conclusion

In summary, the Institute recommends Council withdraw or pause the proposed TLPI. The Institute
corisiders thatthere are a number of issues that should be resolved, including:

s_lack of supporting information

e Construction of the TLPI

e Incorporation of Hinze Dam stage 3 and other factors in the flood modelling
Impact on housing supply

e Impact on land owners’ assets and rights for compensation.

0
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The lack of resolved information is a critical shortcoming of the TLPI. Developers may commit tca
site today-based on current designated flood level, but following City Plan amendments will then be
precluded from developing it. This type of uncertainty has the direct result of preventing the
industry from delivering economic stimulus and creating jobs on the Gold Coast. It may also cause
unnecessary fear and alarm amongst new and existing residents and impact on the ability of
developers within the region to acquire financing.

As indicated above, the Institute places a high value on the productive working relationship
between Council and its members and would welcome the opportunity to discuss this issue further.

If iou have ani iuestions relatini to the detail of this submission, please contact

Yours sincerely
Urban Development Institute of Australia Queensland

President Gold Coast Logan Branch
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Daniel Park

From:

Sent:

To:

Cc:

Subject:
Attachments:

Adam Norris

Friday, 12 January 2018 3:37 PM

Thomas Holmes; Daniel Park

Isaac Harslett

TLPI No.5 - standard response (002)

TLPI No.5 - standard response (002).docx

Isaac and | agree to the attached.
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Daniel Park

From: Nathan Rule

Sent: Friday, 12 January 2018 2:59 PM

To: Isaac Harslett

Subject: RE: Notice of request for further information and to pause a timeframe - TLPI

This will have to wait until Monday. I'd like to run by Graeme first.

Nathan Rule
t ¥ BaActing Executive Director
NSAR) ZJJ# Planning and Development Services
kt@ m\) Department of State Development,
~b &@ Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning

Queensiand AN
Government L ” m Street, Brisbane QLD 4000

PO Box 15009, City East QLD 4002
www.dsdmip.gld.gov.au

From: Isaac Harslett

Sent: Friday, 12 January 2018 10:33 AM

To: Nathan Rule <Nathan.Rule@dilgp.gld.gov.au>

Subject: Notice of request for further information and to/pause a timeframe - TLPI

Hi Nathan
As discussed please find attached the amended TLPI letter.

Cheers

Isaac Harslett
BaA/Manager
“Planning and Development Services (SEQ South)
Department of State Developmient,
Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning

Queensland P *
Government Leveld, ort Street, Southport QLD 4215

PO Box 3290, Australia Fair QLD 4215
www.dsdmip.gld.gov.au
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Queensland
Government
Departmant of
State Development,

Manufaciuring,
Infrasiructure and Planning

Our reference: MC18/175/ TLPI-00046
Your reference: PD113/1303(P1)

12 January 2018

Mr Dale Dickson

Chief Executive Officer
Gold Coast City Council
PO Box 5042

GCMC QLD 9729

Dear Mr Dickson

Notice of request for further information and io pause a timeframe
(Given under chapter 3, part 2, section 8.2 and chapter 3, part 3, section 10.1 of the Minister's Guidelines
and Rules)

Thank you for submitting the proposed Temporary Local Planning Instrument No.5
(Minimum Land Above Designated Fiood l.evel and Residential Risk Reduction) 2017
(the proposed TLPI) to the Honourable Cameron Dick MP, Minister for State
Development, Manufacturing, Infrasiructure and Planning on 4 January 2018 for
consideration under chaptar 3.¢f the Minister's Guidelines and Rules 2017 (MGR).

The Department of State Deveiopment, Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning
(the department) has carried eut a review of the proposed TLPI and determined that
additional information is needed.

Under chapter 3, pait 2, section 8.2 of the MGR, | hereby give notice requesting the
following information:

1. Compliance wiiifi section 23(1)(a) and (b) of the Planning Act 2016

The materiai- submitted with the proposed TLPI has not adequately demonstrated
compliance with section 23(1)(a) and (b) of the Planning Act 2016 (the Planning
Act).

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

e that the proposed TLPI is responding to a risk of serious adverse cultural,
economic, environmental or social conditions happening in the “local
government area

e that the delay involved in using the process in sections 18 and 22-of the
Planning Act to make or amend another local planning instrument would
increase the risk.

To assist in providing the required supporting information, it’is recammended that
you provide:

e a statement on why the current mitigation measures within tne Gold Coast
City Plan 2015 are insufficient to address the future cumulative impacts of
flood hazards

e supporting maps showing the number of properties affected by the
proposed TLPI.

Under chapter 3, part 3, section 10.1 of the MGR, notice is hereby given that the
timeframe for the proposed TLPI has been paused. {nder chapter 3, part 3, section
10.2 of the MGR, the timeframe is paused untii 29 January 2018. On 30 January 2018,
the process will resume at section 8.3, chapter 3; part 3 of the MGR.

If you require further information, | encourage you to contact Daniel Park, Senior
Planning Officer, Planning and Develosment’ Services, of the department on
*or by email at bestplanning-SEQS@dilgp.qgld.gov.au.

Yours sincerely

Isaac Harslett
A/Manager, Planning and Development Services (SEQ South)
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Daniel Park

From: Isaac Harslett

Sent: Friday, 12 January 2018 3:01 PM

To: Nathan Rule

Subject: RE: Notice of request for further information and to pause a timeframe - TLPI
All good

I'll let Adam know.

Cheers

Isaac Harslett

y4A/Manager

# Planning and Development Services (SEQ South)
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

To: Isaac Harslett <Isaac.Harslett@dilgp.qld.gov.au>

Subject: RE: Notice of request for further information and to pause a timeframe - TLPI

This will have to wait until Monday. I'd like to run by Graeme first.

Nathan Rule

yuActing Executive Director

?Planning and Develapment Services
Department of State Development,
Manufacturmg, Infrastructure’and Planning

L AUGAR AT TIDELE ]

Queensland IV A0
Government Level 13, 1 William Street, Brisbane QLD 4000
PO Box 15009, City East-QiD 4002
www.dsdmip.gld.gov.au

From: Isaac Harsiett

Sent: Friday, 12 January 2018 10:33 AM

To: Nathan Rule <Nathan.Rule@dilgp.gld.gov.au>

Subject: Notice of request for further information and to pause a timeframe - TLPI

Hi Mathanr

As discussed please find attached the amended TLPI letter.

Cheers

RTIP1718-047 - Part 4 Page Number 126



Isaac Harslett

y4A/Manager

?Planning and Development Services (SEQ South)
Department of State Development,
Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning

XN 131§

Queensland P

Government Level 1, 7 Short Street, Southport QLD 4215
PO Box 3290, Australia Fair QLD 4215
www.dsdmip.qld.gov.au
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Daniel Park

From: Rebecca Kenny

Sent: Thursday, 8 March 2018 4:36 PM
To: Isaac Harslett

Subject: TLPI for flooding at the Gold Coast
Hi Isaac

We met with the UDIA Gold Coast representative this morning about The Spit.

He mentioned concerns that the TLPI current proposed for flooding would have a significant effect on
developable land on The Spit.

| admit | haven’t been following the TLPI closely, but are you able to confirm-if this)is correct?

cheers

Rebecca Kenny

WaDirector — Priority Planning Projects
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

Sent: Friday, 12 January 2018 3:48 PM
To: Isaac Harslett

Cc: Adam Norris

Subject: Re: GC TLPI 5

Ok good to know.
With Regards

Nathan Rule
Department of State Development, Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning

From: Isaac Harslett
Sent: Friday, January 12, 2018 3:08:32 PM
To: Nathan Rule

Cc: Adam Norris

Subject: RE: GC TLPI 5

Hi Nathan

It in source under D17/307441. Just a side note it was changed by Graeme last time to include some aspects of the
brief as first person. Not sure why but we have kept that fcrmat

Cheers

Isaac Harslett

%A /Manager

Planning and Development Services (SEQ/South)
b Department of State Developinent,

LA Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning

o wn Do w4

£
Gosernment | cyel T, 7 Short Street, Southport QL4215

PO Box 3290, Australia. Fair QLD 4215
www.dsdmip.gld.gov.au

From: Nathan Rule

Sent: Friday, 12 January 2018 2:01 PM

To: Isaac Harslett <lIsaac.Harslett@dilgp.qld.gov.au>
Subject: GCTLPI 5

Do we have the HIB updated in source?

.

2. Nathan Rule

5 A = 4

* ~EFgActing Executive Director

Planning and Development Services
Department of State Development,
Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning
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Level 13, 1 William !lreel, !ns!ane QLD 4000

PO Box 15009, City East QLD 4002
www.dsdmip.qgld.gov.au
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Daniel Park

" From: Ursula O'Donnell
Sent: Thursday, 11 January 2018 12:55 PM
To: Isaac Harslett
Subject: Re: Gold Coast Stop the Clocks

Haha my bad...don't listen to me again!

Regards,
Ursula

On 11 Jan 2018, at 12:53 pm, Isaac Harslett <|saac.Harslett@dilgp.qld.gov.au> wrote:

haha glad | didn’t send them out

Isaac Harslett

[#8A/Manager

%" Planning and Development Services (SEQ South)
Department of State Development,
Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planriing

Quesnsand S
Gowemnment | evel 1, 7 Short Street, Southport QLD 4215

PO Box 3290, Australia Fair QLD 4215
www.dsdmip.gld.gov.au

From: Nathan Rule

Sent: Thursday, 11 January 201812:39 M

To: Isaac Harslett <Isaac.Harslett@dilgp.g!d.gov.au>
Subject: RE: Gold Coast Stop the Ciacks

Hold fire. Want to check wiih KD.

Nathan Rule

@Acting Exacutive Director

Planning and Development Services
Department of State Development,
Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning

et
S ...,
Govemmanl | evel 13, 1 Willia . QLD 4000

PO Box 150009, City East QLD 4002
www.dsdmip.qld.gov.au

From:lszac Harslett

Sent: Thursday, 11 January 2018 9:27 AM
Ta:Nathan Rule <Nathan.Rule@dilgp.qgld.gov.au>
Subject: Gold Coast Stop the Clocks

Hi Nathan
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Heard you are super busy this morning. Do you still want to review the stop the clocks for Gold Coast
or are you happy for me to send them out.

Cheers

Isaac Harslett

%A/ Manager

Planning and Development Services (SEQ South)
Department of State Development,
Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning

Guessasd
Gowemment |evel 1, 7 Short Street, Southport QLD 4215

PO Box 3290, Australia Fair QLD 4215
www.dsdmip.qgld.gov.au

RTIP1718-047 - Part 4 Page Number 132



Daniel Park

From: Kim Kirstein

Sent: Monday, 18 December 2017 4:57 PM
To: Dominique Gallagher

Subject: FW: GCCC TLPI draft

FYI

Kim Kirstein

Manager — Planning and Development Services (SEQ South) (Mon, Tues, Thurs, Fri)
Department of Infrastructure, Local Government and Planning

Level 1, 7 Short Street, Southport

p |m | e. kim.kirstein@dilgp.qld.gov.au

Please consider the environment before printing this email.

From: Kim Kirstein

Sent: Monday, 18 December 2017 7:57 AM

To: Susan Mercer Nightingale <SusanMercer.Nightingale@dilgp.qld.gov.au>

Cc: Megan Bayntun <Megan.Bayntun@dilgp.gld.gov.au>; Tim Pearson <Tim.Pearson@dilgp.qld.gov.au>; Kelly Kohut
<Kelly.Kohut@dilgp.gld.gov.au>; Thomas Holmes <Thomas.Holmes@diigp.qld.gov.au>; Graeme Bolton
<Graeme.Bolton@dilgp.qld.gov.au>

Subject: RE: GCCC TLPI draft

Thanks Susan for the comments. The fast turn-around on this oine is appreciated. | note, the state still has not
received the TLPI formally as of Friday.

I just have some questions:

e The current City Plan was signed off as integrating the SPP 2014 for flood. The outstanding matters related to
coastal hazards which the council is currently progressing an amendment for, and with your team for review
and comment. It is also noted that iiajor Update 2 (currently with you as well) includes the provisions under
the proposed TLPI).

e |tis understoad that the natural kazaid provisions under the current SPP 2017 were strengthened for coastal
hazards, however we are not sure what the key changes where in the flood space. Are you able to give
context to what has changed in terms of the policy between the 2014, 2016 and 2017 versions of the SPP for
flood?

e Are you also able to please advise whether the current provisions under the City Plan still meet the
requirements for flood inder the SPP 2017, If not, a) what does the council specifically need to do to satisfy
the requirements? b) iHave they gone above and beyond those required under the SPP? c) Is the
methodology used saund? If the current City Plan does meet the requirements, what are the differences
between what the SPP requires and what the TLPI is requiring?

e Perthe commants below — ¢an these please be tied to the specific SPP policy requirements for context?

Thanks
Kim

Kim Kirstzin

Manager = Planning and Development Services (SEQ South) (Mon, Tues, Thurs, Fri)
Department of Infrastructure, Local Government and Planning

Level 1, 7 Short Street, Southport

p._| m | . kim.kirstein@dilep.ald.gov.au

Please consider the enviranment before printing this email.
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From: Susan Mercer Nightingale

Sent: Monday, 18 December 2017 6:06 AM

To: Kim Kirstein <Kim.Kirstein@dilgp.qld.gov.au>

Cc: Megan Bayntun <Megan.Bayntun@dilgp.ald.gov.au>; Tim Pearson <Tim.Pearson@dilgp.qgld.gov.au>; Kelly Kohut
<Kelly.Kohut@dilgp.qld.gov.au>

Subject: Fw: GCCC TLPI draft

Kim,
Please find attached Peter's review of the TLPI which | endorse.
Thanks

Susan

From: Peter Do

Sent: Tuesday, December 12, 2017 3:50 PM
To: Susan Mercer Nightingale

Subject: RE: GCCC TLPI draft

Susan,
Our comments on each element of the TLPI follows.

Residential uses are not exposed to flood inundation depths and velocities exceeding those applicable to
medium flood hazard

o We support these provisions {e.g the replaced PO9 and the new PO16) as these make stronger the
requirement for residential uses t0/be located outside of high and extreme levels flood hazards.

Lots have a sufficient-area of {and above the Designated Flood level to effectively and adequately mitigate the
risks and/or hazards associated with the flooding

e We believe thai the amount of land that is allowed to be below the defined flood level (DFL) in the new
provisien (PO17), Is-too great and could potentially expose people and property to intolerable risks from flood.
We wolld recommend that no new lots for residential, commercial or industrial uses are to be below the DFL.

e To support the provision council should provide a risk assessment to demonstrate that PO17 still achieves an
acceptable or tolerable risk from flood. For example they could demonstrate that although a large part of the
iot is below the DFL, evacuation provisions in the code mitigate the risks to an acceptable or tolerable level.

Regards,

Peter Do,

Senicr Planner

Policy and Statutory Planning

Department of Infrastructure, Local Government and Planning
Level 13, 1 William Street, Brisbane QLD 4000

p. _l e. peter.do@dilgp.ald.qov.au
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Customers first | Ideas into action | Unleash potential | Be courageous | Empower people

From: Susan Mercer Nightingale

Sent: Tuesday, 12 December 2017 2:16 PM
To: Peter Do <Peter.Do@dilgp.qgld.gov.au>
Subject: GCCC TLPI draft

Susan Mercer Nightingale

Director

Policy and Statutory Planning

Department of Infrastructure, Local Government and Planning

L illiam Street, Brisbane QLD 4000
p m e. susanmercer.nightingale@dilgp.gld.gov.au
Customers first | Ideas into action | Unleash potential | Be courageous | Empower people
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Eiel Park

=
From: Kim Kirstein
Sent: Tuesday, 30 January 2018 4:33 PM
To: Nathan Rule
Subject: FW: Proposed Temporary Local Planning Instrument No.5 - Notice of request fer further

information and to pause a timeframe

Kim Kirstein

BpManager

Planning and Development Services (SEQ South)
Department of State Development,
Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning

U AT TIOELS 7

Queensland
Government Level 1, 7 Short Street, Southport QLD 4215

PO Box 3290, Australia Fair QLD 4215
www.dsdmip.qld.gov.au

From: BENNETTS Nicole [mailto:NBENNETTS@goldcoast.qld.gov.au]

Sent: Tuesday, 30 January 2018 3:54 PM

To: Kim Kirstein <Kim.Kirstein@dilgp.qld.gov.au>

Cc: ADAIR Kelli <KADAIR@goldcoast.gld.gov.au>; Thomas Holmes <Thomas.Holmes@dilgp.qld.gov.au>; Best
Planning SEQ South <bestplanning-SEQS@dilgp.qld.gev.au>; Daniel Park <Daniel.Park@dilgp.qgld.gov.au>; Rebecca
De Vries <Rebecca.DeVries@dilgp.qld.gov.au>; Adzra Noriis <Adam.Norris@dilgp.qld.gov.au>; KIRWAN Camille

<CKIRWAN@goldcoast.qld.gov.au>
Subject: RE: Proposed Temporary Local Planniing Instrumeiit No.5 - Notice of request for further information and to

pause a timeframe
Hi Kim,

As discussed with Kelli earlier today, we are formally seeking an extension to the response period for the stop the
clock notice for TLPI-5.

We are seeking an extension until Friday 16" February 2018.
Given the response is curiently/due by COB today, we respectfully request your urgent consideration and response.

Any questions, please’let me know,
Kind Regards,

Nicole Bennetts RPIA
Senior Planning Advisor
Director’s Office
Planning & Environment
City of Gold Coast

PO Box 5042 G

W: cityofgoldcoast.com.au
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From: Adam Norris [mailto:Adam.Norris@dilgp.gld.gov.au]

Sent: Monday, 15 January 2018 5:10 PM

To: KIRWAN Camille

Cc: ADAIR Kelli; BENNETTS Nicole; PARKER Kellie; Thomas Holmes; Best Planning SEQ South; Kirin Kirstein; -Daniel
Park; Rebecca De Vries

Subject: Proposed Temporary Local Planning Instrument No.5 - Notice of request for further-information-and to
pause a timeframe

Hi Camille

I refer to the Gold Coast City Council’s (the council) letter received on 4 January 2918 to the Honourable Cameron
Dick MP, Minister for State Development, Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Plariring submitting the proposed
Temporary Local Planning Instrument No. 5 (Minimum Land Above Designated Flood Leve! and Residential Risk
Reduction) 2017 (the proposed TLPI) under chapter 3 of Minister's Guidelines aind Rules 2017 (MGR).

The Department of State Development, Manufacturing, Infrastructure and.Planning/(the department) has identified
matters that require further information to progress the proposed TLPI to the Rlanning Minister.

In regard to the assessment timeframes in the MGR, the department has/paused the timeframes until 30 January
2018 and the timeframes will resume on 31 January 2018.

If you require further information, | encourage you to contact'Darii¢l Paik in the department on -r by
email at Daniel.Park@dilgp.qgld.gov.au.

Regards,
Adam Norris

b4/ /Manager

#Planning and Development Services (SEC; Souih)

Department of State Development,

=9 Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning

Queenstand P NN

Government Level 1, 7 Short Street, Southport QD 4215
PO Box 3290, Australia Fair QLD 4215
www.dsdmip.qld.gov.au

This email and any attachments may contain confidential or privileged information and may be protected by copyright. You must not use or disclose
them other than for the purposes for which they were supplied. The confidentiality and privilege attached to this message and attachment is not waived
by reason of mistaken delivery to you. If you are not the intended recipient, you must not use, disclose, retain, forward or reproduce this message or any
attachments. If you receive this message in error please notify the sender by return email or telephone, and destroy and delete all copies. The
Department'does not accept any responsibility for any loss or damage that may result from reliance on, or use of, any information contained in this email
and/or attachments.
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Be part of the celebrations that unite our nation at the Gold Coast Australia Day event at Broadwater Parkiands! The
event will offer an all-nations food truck feast, live music, the JJ Richards Adventure Zone and a spectacular
fireworks display set to rival New Years Eve. For more information: www.cityofgoldcoast.com.au/austraiiaday

Council of the City of Gold Coast - confidential communication This email and any files transmitted with it are
confidential and are intended solely for the use of the addressee. If you are not the intended recipient be advised
that you have received this email in error and that any use, dissemination, forwarding, printing or copying of this
email and any file attachments is strictly prohibited. If you have received this emailin-error, please immediately
notify us. You must destroy the original transmission and its contents. Before opering cr using attachments, check
them for viruses and defects. The contents of this email and its attachments may becorme serambled, truncated or
altered in transmission. Please notify us of any anomalies. Our liability is limiteato resupplying the email and
attached files or the cost of having them resupplied.
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Daniel Park

From:

Sent:

To:

Subject:
Attachments:

So are we extending or repausing? Perhaps we need the first version which has the complicated jiinks ..

Kim Kirstein

Tuesday, 30 January 2018 4:40 PM

Thomas Holmes; Daniel Park

FW: TLPI No. 5 - Notice to pause a timeframe
TLPI No. 5 - Notice to pause a timeframe.docx

be that complicated?? Should there just be a provision allowing it to b e extended??

L T

Queensland
Government

Kim Kirstein

bManager

Planning and Development Services (SEQ South)
Department of State Development,
Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning

P
Level 1, ort Street, Southport QLD 4215
PO Box 3290, Australia Fair QLD 4215
www.dsdmip.gld.gov.au

From: Daniel Park

Sent: Tuesday,

30 January 2018 4:37 PM

To: Kim Kirstein <Kim.Kirstein@dilgp.qgld.gov.au>
Subject: RE: TLPI No. 5 - Notice to pause a timeframe

Hi Kim,

Friendlier versi

on attached.

Let me know which one you want sent out:

Regards,

Daniel Park

jSenior Planning Officer

Qunsland
Government

Planning and Development Services (SEQ South)
Department of State Development,
Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning

P

Level 1, 7 Short Streert, Southport QLD 4215

PO Box 3290, Australia Fair QLD 4215
www.dsdmip.qld.gov.au

Frorn: Kim' Kirsiein

Sent: Tuesday,

To: Daniel-Park <Daniel.Park@dilgp.gld.gov.au>; Thomas Holmes <Thomas.Holmes@dilgp.qgld.gov.au>

Subject: TLPI N

30 January 2018 4:33 PM

0. 5 - Notice to pause a timeframe
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Approved as attached.
| still don't like that last para but run with it if it is templated.
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
(Given under and chapter 3, part 3, section 10.1.and pursuantta chapter 3, part 2, section 8.3 and chapter
3, part 3, section 10.2 of the Minister's Guidelines and Rules)

Thank you for submitting the proposed Temporary Local Planning Instrument No.5
(Minimum Land Above Designafed Flood Level and Residential Risk Reduction) 2017
(the proposed TLPI) to the Honourahie Cameron Dick MP, Minister for State
Development, Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning on 4 January 2018 for
consideration under chapter'3 of the Minister's Guidelines and Rules 2017 (MGR).

On 15 January 2018, the/Department of State Development, Manufacturing,
Infrastructure and Planning (ihe department) sent the Gold Coast City Council (the
council) a notice reruesting additional information on the proposed TLPI and pausing
the assessment timeframe under the MGR until 30 January 2018.

On 30 January<2018, the department received an email from the council requesting
that the current pause period be extended until 16 February 2018. The department has
considered this request and agrees to extend the duration of the pause period.

This notice pauses the timeframe for the proposed TLPI until 16 February 2018. The
department’s-assessment of the proposed TLPI will resume on 19 February 2018.

Page 1 Planning and Development Services (SEQ South)
PO Box 3290
Australia Fair QLD 4215
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If you require further information, | encourage you to contact Daniel Park, Serior
Planning Officer, of the department on *or by email at bestplanning-
SEQS@dilgp.qld.gov.au.

Yours sincerely

Kim Kirstein
Manager, Planning and Development Services (SEQ Ssiith)

Department of State Development, Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning Page 2
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Daniel Park

S e =S
From: _oxmarproperties.com.au>
Sent: Friday, 22 December 2017 3:17 PM
To: statedevelopment@ministerial.gld.gov.au
Cc: Kim Kirstein
Subject: Gold Coast City Council TLPI - Letter
Attachments: Oxmar Letter to Minister.pdf

Attention: Hon Cameron Dick MP

Dear Sir
Please find letter attached.

Kind Regards,

OXIVIAR PROPERTIES

Mobile:

email:-xxmarproperties.com.au
web: www.oxmarproperties.com.au

BATTLE OF BRISBANE 2

HORN VS

WEDNESDAY |3 DECEMBER
BRISEANE CONVENTION
& EXHIBITION CENTRE
N1 8RN AL RRERN] SRR ARy
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OXMAR

PROPERMTINES
Suite 5 Level 2 Hememaker City
Cnr Gympie & Zillmere Roads Aspley
PO Box 842 Aspiey Qid 4034
P 3263 4977 - F 3263 4966

office@oxmarpropetties.com.au

WWiw.oXima rproperties.com.au

Friday 22nd December 2017

Hon Cameron Dick MP

Minister for State Development, Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Rlanning
PO Box 15009

CITY EAST QLD 4002

Dear Minister

Re: City of Gold Coast Temporary Local Planni'ng Instrument No. 5 (Minimum Land Above
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

We thank you for the oppcriunity to present a submission objecting to the contents of this TLPI.

By way of background, Oxmar Praoperties is a highly-credentialled property developer with over 30
years of experience delivering a range of projects across Queensland. For further information on
our company, please feel free to visit the website, www.oxmarproperlies.com.au/about-us/

We have recently acquired a site situated on the southern side of the Link Way at Mudgeeraba,
which consists Lot 42 on SP184241, Lot 30 on SP270379, Lot 24 on SP868214 and Lot 25 on
SP270379..The deveiopment site measures 60.44ha in size and is proposed to be improved
through’the construction of 1776 residential units and other residential accommodation facilities,
which has a value of over $350 million intended to be invested into the local development and
constructicn sectors.

Aiter extensive review of the contents of this TLPI, we are gravely concerned that the proposed
requlatory controls for development projects within the floodplain will have an extremely adverse
effect-on the development prospects of this site, in addition to a range of other investment
opportunities that we are presently considering across the City.
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Specifically focusing on the Link Way Project, the following details the extensive work that' we have
undertaken to date to assure that the project satisfies our Company's pledge, being “to develop
consistently high quality residential environments, which enhance the lives of the peopie who live
there and the community as a whole™

1

Oxmar Properties have engaged extensively with Gold Coast City Counci! {(GCCC) regarding
the nature and style of development suitable for the site and to meet residential demands
clearly expressed by the community.

Oxmar Properties have facilitated a number of pre-lodgement meetings with’ GCCC Officers
and affected Local Area Councillors to discuss the Project.

Oxmar Properties have engaged a team of specialist technical cainsultants and are expected
to be in a position to lodge a formal Development Application witi-the GCCC in January
2018. We have expended several hundred thousand dollats to date to get to this point.

In selecting their consulting team for the Project, Oxmar Froperties engaged Burchills
Engineering Solutions as their technical engineering services firm, whom have several
decades of specialist experience working on development and planning in the floodplains
across the City. Burchills has undertaken best practice Flood Emergency Management
planning and design that has been the coinerstone of the iterative development of the
Project's overall proposal scheme.

Oxmar Properties notes that constriictiori of the Project will both enhance the local
environment and will reduce the flood impacts on adjacent GCCC community infrastructure.
Further, the proposed upgrade to Link Weayv will provide flood free access to the shopping
centre for new residents and the broadar community.

In summary, Oxmar Properties wishies to emphasise that the regulations contained within the TLPI
would render approximately half of the likely development yield from the Link Way Project as not
being achievable, This would resuit in a significant negative economic impact being felt on the local
construction industry, whilst also exacerbating population growth and housing affordability issues
being felt across the City.

Oxmar Properties’ primary concerns brought about by the introduction of the TLPI relates to the
process by which it has been introduced, specifically:

Overall, thedack of consultation with industry stakeholders and affected parties regarding the
contents ‘and the reiease of the TLPI is of concern.

No independent engineering or planning assessment appears to have been undertaken, with
severai-potential unintended consequences of the TLPI being observed.

The lack of transition period created by the introduction of the TLPI prejudices developers
with significant financial exposure in current and pending development applications.

No guidance on the application of the TLPI has been provided, which results in uncertainty
surreunding how the instrument affects development projects across the floodplain.

Council's information briefing (provided with only 24 hours’ notice) was unclear in its
guidance when numerous typical example development cases were discussed.
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o There remains questions as to whether the State Government’s 0.8m sea level risefigure
has been used to support the introduction of the TLPI. This is a separate issue whichi-wiil be
addressed via updated flood mapping, which is yet to be released by Council.

Oxmar Praoperties firmly believe that the State Government, working with Council, should seek to
establish a collaborative working group including government and industry. stakeholders to
advance discussions around how flood-resilient development should be siistainabiy. located and

designed across the City.

We kindly request that this submission is read in conjunction with otheiobjections that have been
presented from other industry stakeholders, including those from Eurchills Engineering Solutions,
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

not hesitate to contact—r via mobile,_

Yours faithfully

cc: Kim Kirstein
Manager Planning & Development Services — SEQ South
Department of lafrastruciure, Local Government and Planning
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Daniel Park 2

= ===
From: Megan Bayntun
Sent: Monday, 18 December 2017 4:03 PM
To: Graeme Bolton; Kim Kirstein
Cc: Dominique Gallagher; Stephen Smith; Peter Do; Teresa Luck
Subject: HPE CM: HPE Content Manager Work Request : WR17/51109 : Hot Issues Brief - Goid Coast City
Council TLPI No. 5
Attachments: Hot Issues Brief - Gold Coast City Council TLPI No. 5.tr5

Hello Graeme and Kim
Thank you for the opportunity to consider the proposed HIB.

We have tracked changes in the draft for your consideration.

\

Happy to discuss.

Thanks
Megan
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Daniel Park

From: Dominique Gallagher

Sent: Tuesday, 19 December 2017 3:21 PM

To: Kim Kirstein

Cc: Thomas Holmes

Subject: RE: Early effective date of TLPIs under MGR.
Hi Kim,

It was a good chat — I'm going to have a chat to Kelly tomorrow about this too. Thanks forthe additional info too.
I’'m back on Jan 4 so anytime after then.

Hope you have a good Christmas break ©
dom

From: Kim Kirstein

Sent: Tuesday, 19 December 2017 2:57 PM

To: Dominique Gallagher <Dominique.Gallagher@dilgp.qld.gov.au>
Cc: Thomas Holmes <Thomas.Holmes@dilgp.qld.gov.au>

Subject: FW: Early effective date of TLPIs under MGR.

Hi Dom,

Thank you for the chat yesterday. Further — please see beiow ruesticns we have sent through on the matter (and
attached response email) which will help inform any discussions.in'the new year about how we process and manage
these requests in the future.

In particular, our primary questions are around how the eaiiy effective date works within the DA framework. It may be
worth getting some legal advice on this aspect??

Look forward to exploring this further in the new year with you.
Kim

Kim Kirstein
Manager - Planning and Development Services (SEQ South) (Mon, Tues, Thurs, Fri)
Department of Infrastructure, Local Governmieint and Planning
Level 1, 7 Short Street South%

e, kit

p_ m[SEh 3@)E) - sk (histeinmdilpnald ooy

Please consider the enviraninent before printing this email.

From: Kim Kirstein

Sent: Monday; 11 December 2017 2:58 PM

To: Shane Spargo <Shane.Spargo@dilgp.qld.gov.au>; Kate Bourne <Kate.Bourne@dilgp.qld.gov.au>

Cc: Thomas Holmes <Thiomas.Holmes@dilgp.qgld.gov.au>; Tim Pearson <Tim.Pearson@dilgp.qld.gov.au>
Subject: Early effective date of TLPIs under MGR.

Hi Shane/ Kate

We have seme questions around the process requirements for assessing a councils request for an early effective
date for TLPIs under the MGR, and how the early effective date works on the ground in a DA sense, which Thomas
has put together per the below:
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Kim

Kim Kirstein

Background:

(@)

Issue:

Query:

On 8 December 2017, Gold Coast City Council resolved to:
= commence the approval process for a new TLPI (related to minimum flood free access and risk to
residential properties); and
= seek an earlier effective date of 8 December 2017.
The council have publicly notified the proposed TLPI and its earlier effective date through their website,
Planning and Development Alerts, and their council resolution on 8 December 2017 (which is-atove and
beyond the MGR requirements) (see attached).

Council are seeking the proposed TLPI to commence on 8 December 2017, which is the same date of the
council resolution.

When lodged, we have a statutory 20 business days to make the decisiori @and provida the
recommendation to the DG within 10 business days.

Delaying the proposed TLPI for confirmation on our policy will cause‘concerns with the council given the
significant risk this TLPI is seeking to solve.

No internal or external guidance, including in the explanatory notes of the Plarining Act 2016 is provided
on what justification the council needs to provide for the Planrirg Minister to consider the council's
request for an early effective date, or the role of the departmant.in endaorsing/assessing whether the
earlier effective date is appropriate. It only speaks to the role of transparency in notifying the public of the
early commencement date through the councillor meeting.

This proposed TLPI affects major development applications, currently being assessed on the Gold Coast.

What must be considered by the Planning Minister in making a decision on whether to agree to the earlier
effective date?
What are the implications for Development Applications which are currently being assessed by the
council? E.g.
= Can the council only consider the 'nroposed TLPI once it is approved, should the Planning
Minister decide to approve it?
= If so, what does this mean for DAs currently in the system and which may have a decision date
before any approval date of the propssed TLPI, noting that this proposed TLPI may limit
development from beirig able tohappen in medium flood areas, which can currently occur?
= Are council liable for'the change?
= |s the state liable for approving the change which has implications for current DA’s?
= What decision weight niust be given to this new effective date, and what liability are we placing
on the Minister for approving such a date?

Manager — Planning and Development Services (SEQ South) (Mon, Tues, Thurs, Fri)
Department of Infrastructuie, Local Government and Planning

Level 1, 7 Short Street, Sauthport
o I | SR - kinkirsein@dilzn.ad govan

Please consider the environment before printing this email.
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Daniel Park

=== = = =
From: zoneplanning.com.au>

Sent: Friday, 22 December 2017 2:29 PM

To: Kim Kirstein; atzannes@goldcoast.qld.gov.au

Cc: ail@goldcoast.qld.gov.au; GC SARA
Subject: Submission made to Hon Cameron Dick - City of Gold Coast TLPI No 5
Attachments: Letter to Minister - TLPI No 5.pdf

Hi Kim and Amanda

Please find attached correspondence submitted to Hon Cameron Dick in regard to City ¢f Gold Coast’s TLPI No 5 for
your information.

Please do not hesitate to contact me should you have any questions or would like to discuss further.

Kindly

a4Z0Nne

Planning Group

Zone Planning Group wish you and your familv a very Merry
Christmas and a Happy New Year

Please note that our office will be closed from S.00pm, 21t December 2017 and vill be
reopening on the &th of January 2018.

Emails vill only be checked periedically throughoutthis timeé and wvhilst v vill attempt to
reply as soon as possible, there could be a delay. Farurgent matters, you cantry the
mokile number listed below.

| w zoneplanning.com.au

Gold Coast 1638 Tweed Street, Burleigh Heads QLD 4220 | PO Box 3805, Burleigh Town QLD 4220 | Ph 07 5562 2303.
Gladstone 2/172 Goendoon St | PO Box 5332 | Gladstone, QLD 4680 | Ph 07 4972 3831.

The information in this e-mail/aitachrent(s) is confidential and intended for the named recipient/s only. If you are not the intended recipient, you must not use, disclose,
read, forward, copy or retain any-ot the information. If this e-mail is received in error, please delete it and notify the sender by return e-mail or telephone. Zone Planning
Group does not guarantee the integyity ef this email or any associated attachments.
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Our Ref: 717139 z zone

Planning Group
22 December 2017 GOLD COAST ' GLADSTONE

p 07:55622303

The Hon Cameron Dick MP info@zenepianning.com.au

Minister for State Development, Manufacturing, zoneplanning.com.au
Infrastructure and Planning ABN 36 607 362 238

Unit 1, 80 Wembley Road

Woodridge Qld 4114

Dear Sir

CITY OF GOLD COAST TEMPORARY LOCAL PLANNING INSTRUMENT (TLPI) NO. 5 MINIMUM LAND
ABOVE DESIGNATED FLOOD LEVEL AND RESIDENTIAL RISK REDIJCTION) 2017

We write to you as an industry stakeholder and on behalf of our ciient, Myall Group, regarding City of
Gold Coast’s recent TLPI No 5 which it is understood is currently with your office for your endorsement.

Firstly, we would like to make it very clear that we do’not/suppert development occurring in locations
which place undue risk to persons and/or property. We also uniderstand that the recent litigation cases
occurring in relation to the Brisbane 2011 are fresh-on everycne’s mind.

However, we have concerns in regard to the proposed TLPI No 5 in that trying to achieve a certain
outcome, decisions are being made in haste of which/have had little (if any) peer review, or consultation
with key external stakeholders, experts in.the area of flooding and natural hazard risk management, or
industry in general.

The purpose of the TLPI is to, “..prevent the putential loss of the City’s flood resilience and enable the
sustainable mitigation of flood hazdra an lond included on City Plan’s Flood overlay map. The provision
seeks to strengthen Council’s commitment 'to ensure development in flood affected areas is safe and
resilient” with proposed amendments te the Flood Overlay Code to ensure:

a. Residential uses'are only expased to medium or less flood hazard; and
b. ROL’s provide sufficient lond at or above the Designated Flood Level.

(Source: http://www.goldcoast.qid,gov.au/planning-and-building/temporary-local-planning-instrument-no-5-
2017-43294.html)

Additionally, the amendments seek to “..discourage the proliferation of Residential Uses constructed on
platforms dbave Flood Affected Land”.

This provision is ciear in its intent that podium development does not occur in the City. However, no peer
reviewed technical data has been made available to support that this type of development (construction
methad) is ineffective or that it creates a danger to persons or property in a severe weather event. In
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
to traditional cut and fill processes (of which Council officers have confirmed they are supportive ofj due
to their limited impact on the environment — being piers/columns verses substantial earthworks and
recontouring of the natural environment.

Furthermore, in seeking to introduce the term ‘flood resilience’ in to the TLPI, Council has cffered no
explanation as to what this means and how it can be achieved. The term resilience is a broadiy used term
and varies across different contexts; however, it is mostly referred to the ability to bounca back arrecover
from a significant event and / or the ability to adapt to different situations. In the context of disaster
management, flood resilience can be explained as reducing the devastating impacts of floods before a
flood event occurs. In the case of podium development, this type of developmeint seeks to do just this —
despite the TLPI seeking to “..discourage the proliferation of Residential Uses consiructéd on platforms
above Flood Affected Land”.

Should the proposed TLPI be endorsed in its current form, Myall Group, as a’local developer with
international investment ties, will be directly affected by these-changes. Myall Group lodged a
development application into Council on 27 November 2017 with rio'knowledge of the impending release
of the TLPI. In this specific situation, a prelodgement meeting was heald-with Council officers in August
2017 prior to lodging the development application; of which officers were supportive of the proposed
podium residential development (which adjoins a Court approved podium residential development),
giving Myall Group confidence to move forward with the develogrient.

At the specific request of Council’s Hydraulic officers, substantial flood modelling was ‘required’ to be
undertaken and Council’s Prelodgement Meeting Minutes /did not indicate that the proposed
development format was unacceptable. That is, there was no indication that a podium format would be
unsupported by Council providing visual amenity andtechinical aspects could be achieved, including flood
mitigation to a 500 year ARI flood event. As locai flsod data was not available from Council in relation to
the subject site, detailed flood modelling was undertaken at considerable cost to Myall Group to ensure
the development was technically sound - ¢f which-the hydraulic modelling data confirmed to be the case.
In regard to the visual amenity, landscape buffers the full perimeter of the podium were proposed as
requested by officers.

Discussion with Council officers, betivwithin the Council’s policy and development assessment sections,
indicate that they are not prepared in dealirig with the TLPI and are unable to provide any advice in regard
to applications currently being assessed through the development assessment process. Furthermore, the
hundreds of thousands of deliars invested in the preparation of expert reports in support of the
development (some ‘required’ by Council officers), along with tens of thousands of dollars in Council
application fees shouid-also be considered.

Again, we are nct/supporting inappropriate development in unsafe locations, podium development has
proven to be a’structurally and technically sound construction method in areas of inundation over many
years, both localiy-arid internationally.

It is respectfully requested that due consideration be given to the facts and peer reviewed technical
eviderice be sought prior to making a decision in regard to TLPI No 5.

Additionally; consideration is also requested in regard to the substantial investment that has been made
oy developers in preparing their development applications and expert reports for Council’s assessment,
with’'no prior knowledge or consultation in regard to Council’s proposed TLPI No 5.

1638 Tweed Street, Burleigh Heads QLD | PO Box 3805, Burleigh Town QLD 4220 2
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Should you have any queries concerning the above please contact myself or_of this office

on We look forward to receiving your response to the items raised in this correspondernce st

your earliest convenience.

Yours sincerely

ZONE PLANNING GROUP

CC:
1. Kim Kirstein
Manager, Gold Coast SARA
South East Queensland (South)
Department of
PO Box 3290
Australia Fair
Southport Qld 4215
Email: GCSARA@dilgp.qld.gov.au

Z, Amanda Tzannes
Manager, City Planning
City of Gold Coast
PO Box 5042
GCMC QLD 9729
Email: atzannes@goldcoast.gldgov.al’/ mail@goldcoast.qld.gov.au

1638 Tweed Street, Burleigh Heads QLD | PO Box 3805, Burleigh Town QLD 4220 3
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Daniel Park

From: Sophie Smith

Sent: Monday, 15 January 2018 3:19 PM

To: Executive Correspondence DSD

Cc: Thomas Holmes; Meaghan Dwyer

Subject: Correspondence - Proposed TLPI No 5 - Gold Coast City Council
Hi David

We have been receiving a few letters about the TLPI No 5 down the Gold Coast, and éxpect to receive quite a few
more.

Our regional office has drafted a standard response for these but while this is gettirig-finalised are you able to liaise
with the DLO about getting a consistent signatory for this corro.

Some are coming to us as DG response and the rest as DDG response. Ii-possible, can we please get all the below
(and any future) to be a DDG response? | have highlighted the two which are DG response currently.

B = B§ WR18/1557 10/01/2018 at 402 PM B8 Correspondence received on proposed TLPI No. 5

'@ MC18/2593 12/01/2018 at 1:47 PN 'E] MRN : Corcerns - Proposed TLPI Mo 5 - Gold Coast City C
= & '@ MC18/233 10/01/2018 at 5:21 AM '@ Concerns - Proposed TLPI No 5 - Gold Coast City Council
[ '@ MMC18/214 5/01/2018 at 12:07 PM @ Concearris -Proposed TLPI No 5 - Gold Coast City Council
B ® E] rC18/127 4/01/2018 at 1:58 PM '@ Concerns =Proposed TLPI Mo 5 - Gold Coast City Council
B & E] Mg 11 4/01/2018 at 1:16 PM '@" Concerns- Proposed TLPI No 5 - Gold Coast City Council
[ '@ MC18/102 4/01/2018 at 10:40 AM ﬁ:‘] Concerns 4 Proposed TLPI Mo 5 - Gold Coast City Council
B2 = '@] DGC18/14 3/01/2018 at 3:30 PM '@ Concarns - Propased TLPI No 5 - Gold Coast City Council
@ MC18/44 3/01/2018 at 1(:52 AM ﬁ., Canceeins - Proposed TLRI No 5 - Gold Coast City Coundil
[ ﬁ:‘] MC18/3 2/01/2018 at 2:56FM TE Concerns - Proposed TLPI Mo 5 - Gold Coast City Council

| am happy to send the standard respanse up'to get endorsement from the DG or the DLO once Kerry and Teresa are
happy with.

Thanks
Sophie

Sophie Smith

7 MaCorrespondence Officer

Planning Group

Departmentof State Development,
Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning

L 0B AV TIOTLS ]

Queensland /F 0734527658
Government  Levei13, 1 William Street, Brisbane QLD 4000

PO Box.15009, City East QLD 4002
www.dsdmip.qgld.gov.au
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Daniel Park

== — = e
From: Executive Correspondence DSD
Sent: Wednesday, 17 January 2018 12:46 PM
To: Sophie Smith
Cc: Thomas Holmes; Meaghan Dwyer
Subject: RE: Correspondence - Proposed TLPI No 5 - Gold Coast City Council

Hi Sophie

~Just clearing out some emails —apologies if | didnt copy you in or forward the DLO’s response, | can’t find an email
to you.

This is all OK, and the highlighted items should have both been updated now.
Let us know once the standard response is ready and we’ll get the approvals sorted!

Cheers, Cass

Cassy Aggett
paSenior Correspondence Officer
Office of the Director-General
Department of State Development,
Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning

}*"«I@@;\' :
LAV
) -‘ll‘?'%gl

Queensland ;_ E cassandra.aggett@dsd.gld.gov.au
Government Level 38, 1 William Street, Brisbane QLD 4000

PO Box 15009, City East QLD 4002
www.dsdmip.qgld.gov.au

(f

From: Sophie Smith

Sent: Monday, 15 January 2018 3:19 PM

To: Executive Correspondence DSD <ExecutiveCorrespondenceDSD@dsd.qld.gov.au>

Cc: Thomas Holmes <Thomas.Holmes@dilgp.gld.gov.au>; Meaghan Dwyer <Meaghan.Dwyer@dilgp.qld.gov.au>
Subject: Correspondence - Proposed TLPI No 5 < Gold Coast City Council

Hi David

We have been receiving a few leiters’about the TLPI No 5 down the Gold Coast, and expect to receive quite a few
more.

Our regional office has drafted a standard response for these but while this is getting finalised are you able to liaise
with the DLO abaut getting a consistent signatory for this corro.

Some are coming to us as DG response and the rest as DDG response. If possible, can we please get all the below
(and any future) to be a DDG response? | have highlighted the two which are DG response currently.
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Bl = B3 WR18/1557

10/01/2018 at 02 PM

E Carrespondence received on proposed TLPI No, 5

T mcis/293
@ T Mc1g/233
T mciarz14
@ T mcigm27
@ T M1
@ T mc1s/102
@ X pecis/14

T mc18/44
@ T mc1es3

DO00OOODOOD

12/01/2018 at 1:47 PM
10/01,/2018 at %:21 AM
8/01/2018 at 12:07 PM
4/01/2018 at 1:58 PM
4/01/2018 at 1:16 PM
4/01/2018 at 10:40 AM
3/01/2018 at 3:30 PM
3/01/2018 at 10:52 AM
2/01/2018 at 2:56 PM

'E MRM : Concerns - Proposed TLPI No 5 - Gold Coast City C
':EI Concerns - Proposed TLPI No 5 - Gold Coast City Council
'@ Concerns - Proposed TLPI Mo 5 - Gold Coast City Councdil
'@ Concerns - Proposed TLPI No 5 - Gold Coast City Council
'@] Concerns - Proposed TLPI No 5 - Gold Coast City Council
'E] Concerns - Proposed TLPI No 5 - Gold Coast City Council
'@ Concerns - Proposed TLPI No 5 - Gold Coast City Coundil
'@ Concerns - Proposed TLPI No 5 - Gold Coast City Council
'@ Concerns - Proposed TLPI No 5 - Gold Coast City Council

| am happy to send the standard response up to get endorsement from the DG or the’ DLO once Kerry and Teresa are

happy with.

Thanks
Sophie

Sophie Smith

A5~ M Correspondence Officer

#Planning Group

Department of State Development,
Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning

L ZUCAE X7 TIDEUE ]

Queensland P
Government Level 13, 1 William Street, Brisbane QLD 4000

PO Box 15009, City East QLD 4002
www.dsdmip.gld.gov.au
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Daniel Park

From: Katherine Chuan

Sent: Friday, 5 January 2018 5:01 PM

To: Thomas Holmes

Cc: Dominique Gallagher; Upendo Kowero
Subject: TLPI and an early effective date

Hi Thomas,

As discussed, I've had a look into the provisions relating to TLPIs and early effective dates.

Section 9(4) of the Planning Act prescribes when a TLPI can have an early effective date. An extract of this section
can be found below:
() However, with the Minister’s agreement in writing, the
elfective day for the making or amendment of a TLPI 1s the
duy when the local government. at a puhlic meeting, resalved
ta give the TLPI or amendment. and the request [or an carlier
effcetive day. to the Minister for approval.

This means that a TLPI can only have an early effective date if:
1. The local government, at a public meeting, resolves to give the Minister the TLPI and the request for an early

effective date (ie the date that the public meeting was held), and
2. The Minister agrees to an early effective date.

Since the council made the resolution at a closed meeting, it is‘hot eligible for an early effective date.
Please let me know if there's anything else | can help you with.

Kind regards

Katherine Chuan

$4Planner

Planning Group

Department of State Develcpment,
Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning

L ZUBAX XY TIDELS ]

Queensland
Government Level 13, 1 William Street; Brisbane QLD 4000

PO Box 15009, City East QLD 4002
www.dsdmip.qgld.gov.au
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Daniel Park

From: Grant Hastie <Grant.Hastie@oir.qld.gov.au>

Sent: Tuesday, 9 January 2018 9:27 AM

To: Daniel Park; Best Planning SEQ South; Thomas Holmes

Cc: HICB

Subject: HICB response RE: GCCC- Proposed TLPI No.5 (minimum land above designated floed level and

residential risk reduction)

Please note that in regards to the GCCC TLPI referred to above, our agency comments arethe same as those you
have already provided for Major Update 2 and we have nothing further to add.

Regards
Grant Hastie

Chief Advisor (Hazardous Chemicals)
Hazardous Industries and Chemicals Branch

WHSQ Hazchem web pages

Workplace Health and Safety Queensland
Department of Treasury

The most important reason for making your workplace safe; is not‘at work at all. Work safe. Home safe. For more
information visit www.worksafe.qgld.gov.au, or telephene 1300 362 128,

|

N: ARE YOU GHS

From: Daniel Park [mailto:Daniel.Park@dilgp.qld.gov.aul

Sent: Monday, 8 January 2018 4:31 PM

To: Natural Hazards <NaturalHazards@dilgp.ald.gov.au>; HICB <hicb@oir.qld.gov.au>;
HSCATownPlanning@hpw.qld.gov.au; begstateinterest@hpw.gld.gov.au

Cc: Thomas Holmes <Thomas,Holmes@dilgp.qgld.gov.au>; Isaac Harslett <Isaac.Harslett@dilgp.gld.gov.au>
Subject: Gold Coast City Council -~ Proposed TLPI No.5 (minimum land above designated flood level and residential
risk reduction)

Good Afternoon,

Gold Coast City.Council (the council) has prepared a Temporary Local Planning Instrument (TLPI) to the Gold Coast
City Plan 2015, titied the proposed TLPI (minimum land above designated flood level and residential risk reduction)
No.5.

The council, utilising’the Minister’s Guidelines and Rules is now seeking the Planning Minister’s approval to proceed
to adopt the proposed TLPI.

On 5 December 2017, the council tabled a confidential report relating to the proposed TLPI. On 8 December 2017,
the counciiresolved to send the proposed TLPI to the Planning Minister for approval and to seek an early effective
date of 8 December 2017.
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As the council has now progressed the proposed TLPI for approval, the department is now requesting your state
agency assessment of the proposed TLPI. All relevant documents have been attached to this email and will be
shortly be available through the EziScheme online portal.

Can you please reply to this email with any comments you have on the proposed TLPI with regards t@ your relevant
state interests.

Note that the contents of the proposed TLPI is included within Major Update 2 for the Gold Coast City Council. If
your agency comments with respect to the provisions of the proposed TLPI are the same as those you have already
provided for Major Update 2 please reply stating this to be the case.

Please note that all comments and responses are to be emailed to bestplanning-SEQS@dilgp.ald.gov.au AND
daniel.park@dilgp.gld.gov.au AND thomas.holmes@dilgp.qld.gov.au by COB Friday 12 January 2018.

If you are not the appropriate contact in your department, can you please contact either myself, or Thomas on 5644
3210 as soon as possible to confirm the correct contact.

Thank you, should you have any further queries please do not hesitate to call.

Daniel Park
hxSenior Planning Officer
Planning and Development Services (SEQ South)
Department of State Development,
Manufacturing, Infrastructure and Planning

Y AT VIO

eensland
Government

Level 1, 7 Short Streert, Southport QLD 4215
PO Box 3290, Australia Fair QLD 4215
www.dsdmip.gld.gov.au

This email and any attachments may ¢ontain confidential or privileged information and may be protected by copyright. You must not use or disclose
them other than for the purposes for which they were supplied. The confidentiality and privilege attached to this message and attachment is not waived
by reason of mistaken delivery to you. If you are not the intended recipient, you must not use, disclose, retain, forward or reproduce this message or any
attachments. If you receive thisinessage in-error please notify the sender by return email or telephone, and destroy and delete all copies. The
Department does not accept any responsibility for any loss or damage that may result from reliance on, or use of, any information contained in this email
and/or attachments.

This email is intended only for the addressee. Its use is limited to that intended by the author at the time and it is
not to be distributed without the author's consent. Unless otherwise stated, the State of Queensland accepts no
liability for the contents of this email except where subsequently confirmed in writing. The opinions expressed in
this email are those of the author and do not necessarily represent the views of the State of Queensland. This email
is confidential and may be subject to a claim of legal privilege. If you have received this email in error, please notify
the author and delete this message immediately
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